I

Convention 1I.

Arena

Authority II1.

Steven Heacock,

Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin
IV.
V.
VL
VII.

VIIL

IX.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
HOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, §

Board of Directors

Tuesday, November 7, 2006
9:15 a.m. — 10:00 a.m.
Kent County Commission Board Room
300 Monroe Avenue, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA

Call to Order

Approval of September 27, 2006, Minutes

Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee
i. Committee Report
il. CVB Report

b. Finance Committee

1. Approval of SMG September 2006 Financial
Statements — DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

il. Approval of CAA September 2006 Financial Statements

iil. Special-Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the
Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, and Independent
Auditors’ Report — DeVos Place® and Van Andel
Arena®, as Managed by SMG

iv. SMG Food & Beverage September 2006
Revenue and Commission Report

CAA Initiated Events
Ticket Policy Discussion
SMG Report and Facilities Calendars

Public Comment

Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, November 29, 2006. This will be a

combined November/December meeting

Adjournment

Action

Information
Information
Action

Action
Action

Information

Information
Information

Information

a
303 Monroe Ave. N
Grand Rapids, 3.

Fax

DeVos Pl

ced®

23

Ml 49503-22
616.742.65
616.742.65

3
0
9

OOw



Item 11
MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, September 27, 2006

L. Call to Order

Chairman Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. Chairman Heacock presided
and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairman

Lew Chamberlin

Clif Charles
Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnerney
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: George Heartwell

Staff/Others: Ben Booker SMG Food & Beverage, LLC
Amy Capehart SMG Food & Beverage, LLC
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Mary Jo Domanski SMG Food & Beverage, LLC
Brian Dykema
Kim Hallifax SMG Food & Beverage, LLC
George Helmstead CVB
Lynne Ike SMG
Rev. Joe Jones Strategic Communications Group, LLC
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Janet Komn CVB
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
Chris Reynolds SMG Food & Beverage, LLC
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Chef Robert Walsh SMG Food & Beverage, LLC
Skot Welch Diversity Management Strategists, LLC
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB

I Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of a Letter of Agreement with Management

Strategists, LLC and Strategic Communications Group, LLC for Professional Services

Mr. Welch and Mr. Jones presented a proposal to design and develop an ethnically focused
programming/community outreach plan and establish internal diversity practices for long-term revenue
gain. They will employ a two-pronged strategy to reach a more diverse audience base for the CAA. The



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 27, 2006 — 2

emphasis of the first prong will be to focus externally, through an ethic programming/community
outreach campaign, to increase revenue and market presence in both the African-American and Hispanic
communities. The community outreach plan will establish the Arena and DeVos Place’s presence in
West Michigan through a multi-faceted approach that will increase community awareness, create a base
for ongoing research and development through public engagement, and position the facilities as the
premier locations for concerts, plays, and other entertainment offerings for the African-American and
Latino communities. The program’s main objectives include building relationships with community
leaders; developing strategies for continued communications; introducing community leaders to the
CAA’s facilities and program offerings; gaining feedback on program offerings; identifying community
needs related to entertainment programming; and identifying additional outlets and information networks
through which the CAA can engage community. Initially, Skot and Joe will target community and
opinion leaders; clergy/barbers and stylists; and ethnic media outlets.

The second prong will focus internally on key areas for improvement as identified in the diversity
management assessment (to include measurable results) and will concentrate on the development of a
culturally competent workforce and, hence, a standard-setting customer experience. Skot and Joe will
apply the ISO9000 Total Quality Management Process because “best practices make perfect.”

Attorney Richard Wendt outlined the terms of a proposed letter agreement among the CAA, Management
Strategists, LLC, and Strategic Communications Group, LLC. The agreement will take effect on October
1, 2006, for a term of one year with two additional one-year options. The cost of the agreement will be
$21,000 annually, plus out-of-pocket expenses, but the actual value of services will be $66,000. Skot
Welch and Joe Jones will be the persons primarily responsible for performing the services, and any
change in personnel will require the prior approval of the CAA Executive Director.

Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Letter of Agreement with
Management Strategists, LLC, and Strategic Communications Group, LLC.

Discussion followed. In answer to a question from Ms. Klohs, Mr. Welch responded that the Asian
community is in the queue as the program moves forward. Mr. Tomaselli asked how the program would
position and market DeVos Place® for attracting more conventions. Mr. Jones responded that he has
talked with Steven Wilson about the opportunity to dialogue and work together. Mr. Jones added that he
has the tools necessary to assist the CVB with the CAA in mind. Mr. Chamberlin inquired how the
initiatives would intersect with the CAA Board, staff, and committees. Mr. Welch responded that they
would provide quarterly reports and have standing meetings with Mr. MacKeigan. Mr. McInerney stated
that the CAA Board should be willing to take the financial risk regarding entertainment offerings. Mr.
Charles added that, as a Board, members need to have a presence at the events. Chairman Heacock
closed the discussion and extended his appreciation to Messrs. Jones and Welch for taking time from their
busy schedules to present their proposal to the CAA Board. Chairman Heacock called for a vote on the
motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

III. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the August 23, 2006,
meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 27, 2006 - 3

Iv. Presentation by SMG Food and Beverage, LLC

SMG Food and Beverage provided a continental breakfast for CAA Board members and the audience.
Chris Reynolds, Midwest Regional Director of Food & Beverage, introduced fellow employees Ben
Booker, Director of Food & Beverage/Retail Sales; Amy Capehart, Director of Food &
Beverage/Premium Services; Mary Jo Domanski, Catering & Suites Managers; Kim Hallifax,
Concession/Warehouse Manager; and Robert Walsh, Head Chef. Amy Capehart reviewed suite and
concessions upgrades. In addition to placing day-of-event menus in each suite, SMG has installed new
software that allows suite holders to place orders in advance. On-line ordering should be available within
a month. Ms. Capehart has been meeting with prospective clients to market the Arena banquet rooms for
their meetings and catering events. Initially, menu items will remain the same, but SMG has added some
high-end products such as caviar and martini stations. Ben Booker provided a review of upgrades to the
concessions operations. Mr. Booker has been proactive in developing relationships with suppliers such as
Pepsi, West Side Beer, Brann’s Ucellos, and Country Fresh. SMG offers a more simplified and higher
quality product line. Staff will be wearing new, themed uniforms. The nonprofit organizations that man
concessions stands will receive customer service training. The concessions offer an easy-to-use point of
sale system for cash or credit cards. SMG is planning to install new menu boards and modify concession
names to create a local identity.

V. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee.

1. Operations Committee Update

The Committee received an update from Jim Watt who reported that the ballroom is the busiest hall in the
building and has required the installation of additional electric floor boxes. The increased use has
damaged the carpet, which may need to be replaced sooner than originally planned. The Committee also
received an update on artwork at DeVos Place®. Progressive AE conducted a study to identify placement
opportunities for artwork inside and outside of the facility. The information will be reviewed by the Arts
Council subcommittee headed by Iliana Ordaz-Jeffries which will put together a comprehensive plan.

il. CVB Report

Mr. Wilson announced that the CVB has booked the National Association of Retired and Active Federal
Employees convention for August 2010. Delegates will be staying in Grand Rapids over a period of 10
days. Grand Rapids prevailed over first-tier cities such as Dallas, Kansas City, Palm Springs, and Reno
by focusing on the right kind of business, packaging the community well, and promoting the entire
region. The CVB also secured the Lions Club 2007 convention because of our high quality facilities at
reasonable rates and an extremely strong local representative (Gary Anderson), as well as the group’s
predisposition for second-tiered cities.

b. Finance Committee
I. SMG August 2006 Financial Statements for DeVos Place®
and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended August 31, 2006. After review and
discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 27, 2006 — 4

ii. CAA August 2006 Financial Statements
Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the CAA Disbursements and
Financial Statements for the period ended August 31, 2006. After review and discussion, the motion was

unanimously adopted.

VL SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

VII.  Public Comment
Daryl J. Delabbio, Kent County Administrator, invited CAA Board members to the “No One Can Do It
Alone” symposium scheduled for October 27, 2006, 8:00 a.m. to Noon, at DeVos Place®. The

symposium will discuss how we can work together to address institutional racism.

VIII. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, October 25, 2006, 8:00 a.m.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



Item IIL.b.i.

‘USPLACE

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 103 497 600 624 (24)
ATTENDANCE 58,215 655,450 713,665 727,780 (14,115)
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 266,517 2,016,800 2,283,317 2,323,417 (40,100)
ANCILLARY REVENUE 287,587 1,681,141 1,968,728 2,007,628 (38,900)
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 554,104 3,697,941 4,252,045 4,331,045 (79,000)
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 38,606 195,800 234,406 231,000 3,406
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 592,710 3,893,741 4,486,451 4,562,045 (75,594)
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 30,859 123,840 154,699 140,906 (13,793)
FINANCE 58,029 152,630 210,659 205,722 (4,937)
MARKETING 18,330 56,420 74,750 78,379 3,629
OPERATIONS 285,991 1,038,600 1,324,591 1,343,743 19,152
EVENT SERVICES 213,029 736,890 949,919 961,288 11,369
BOX OFFICE 20,606 54,698 75,304 73,588 (1,716)
SALES 56,547 188,320 244,867 245,772 905
OVERHEAD 360,860 1,890,784 2,251,644 2,238,289 (13,355)

TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 1,044,252 4,242,182 5,286,433 5,287,687 1,254
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (451,542) (348,441) (799,982) (725,642) (74,340)
INCENTIVE FEE 153,702 153,702 153,702 -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (451,542) (502,143) (953,684) (879,344) (74,340)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

The first quarter of the fiscal year has seen DeVos Place hold consistent

with budget. However, event revenue has fallen below expection, offset
by lower than expected spending. The forecast shows revenue holding
consistent with budget through the balance of the fiscal year, and
overall the facility falling a little short of budget.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending September
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH September September September
Actual Budget FY 2006
Number of Events 46 64 53
Attendance 27,277 41,450 23,227
Direct Event Income $129,395 $209,522 $138,639
Ancillary Income 164,317 183,604 177,164
Other Income 12,786 19,250 8,336
Indirect Expenses (324,834) (399,308) (378,322)
Net Income ($18,336) $13,068 ($54,184)
YTD YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2006
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 103 118 106
Attendance 58,215 77,700 55,283
Direct Event Income $266,517 $328,822 $308,733
Ancillary Income 287,587 357,323 327,738
Other Income 38,606 57,750 19,826
Indirect Expenses (1,044,252) (1,174,204) (972,824)
Net Income ($451,542) ($430,309) ($316,528)

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell below budget for the month. It was anticipated that the facility was going to
play host to a RV show comparable to the one hosted in January. This event did not take
place, causing the shortfall in overall event revenue.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below expected levels for the same reason as event revenue, however,
events hosted during the month performed very well in all area's.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in below budget for the month. Most of the savings due to timing
of expenses in the operations department.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/06

----------------- 1072 S o JE
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 149,992 201,450 148,513 313,253 327,075 322,702
SERVICES INCOME <20,597> 8,072 <9,873> <46,736> 1,747 <13,969>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 129,395 209,522 138,639 266,517 328,822 308,733
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 61,857 53,303 53,399 107,343 135,135 137,296
NOVELTY 0 500 (] 1,673 1,500 0
ELECTRICAL 39,162 54,419 36,545 49,756 76,214 55,943
OTHER ANCILLARY 63,298 75,382 87,220 128,815 144,474 134,498
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 164,317 183,604 177,164 287,587 357,323 327,738
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 293,712 393,126 315,803 554,104 686,145 636,470
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 12,786 19,250 8,336 38,606 57,750 19,826
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 306,498 412,376 324,139 592,710 743,895 656,296
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,767 11,743 12,256 30,859 35,229 29,881
FINANCE 21,914 17,143 21,405 58,029 51,429 52,969
MARKETING 2,362 6,531 7,125 18,330 19,593 12,192
OPERATIONS 56,169 124,768 111,987 285,991 370,584 253,783
EVENT MANAGEMENT 82,869 79,859 80,932 213,029 239,577 200,643
BOX OFFICE 8,205 6,133 7,822 20,606 18,399 19,966
SALES 21,267 20,481 12,972 56,547 61,443 35,933
OVERHEAD 119,283 132,650 123,823 360,860 377,950 367,458
INDIRECT EXPENSES 324,834 399,308 378,322 1,044,252 1,174,204 972,824
NET OPERATING INCOME <18,336> 13,068 <54,184> <451,542> <430,309> <316,528>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) <18,336> 13,068 <54,184> <451,542> <430,309> <316,528>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/06

---------------- CURRENT-~-ww---omommmcen womecenw————-—-YEAR TO DATE-------ue-u—-
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed . 13,672 0 0 13,672 0 5,944
Changeover Setup Billed 199 [ 976 335 [] 2,334
Stagehands Billed 62,064 48,950 52,333 131,459 110,850 122,236
Security Billed 6,309 12,260 12,989 19,024 25,360 32,554
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 4,959 8,400 5,741 9,889 12,000 9,611
Box Office Billed 700 1,300 700 1,200 1,700 800
Ticketing Serxvice Billed 2,930 9,215 2,196 9,947 17,215 3,098
City Police Fire Billed 665 0 700 2,000 0 10,310
EMT Medical Billed 1,381 2,022 1,425 2,519 3,047 3,528
Cleaning Billed 0 0 0 24 0 []
Insurance Billed 501 0 193 2,064 0 580
Telephone Billed 2,405 600 2,250 6,165 1,950 6,005
Other Production Billed 8,336 0 2,874 13,442 0 4,968
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 104,121 82,747 82,376 211,738 172,122 201,965
Advertising Expense 14,072 0 0 14,081 0 6,114
Stagehand Wages 57,435 45,784 48,888 122,937 105,827 113,102
Contracted Security Expense 12,478 7,960 12,480 36,361 21,060 30,495
Ushers & T/T Wages 3,471 5,145 4,019 6,922 7,665 6,728
Ticket Sellers Wages 700 1,050 659 1,080 1,650 864
Ticket Service Charge Expense 549 3,000 632 3,994 6,200 766
City Police Fire Expense 665 0 700 2,166 0 10,310
EMT Medical Expense 1,176 672 1,045 2,489 1,697 3,339
Contracted Cleaning Expense 24,570 11,064 20,642 51,514 26,276 37,958
Insurance Expense 463 0 151 1,782 [] 466
Group Sales Commissions 0 0 0 140 0 0
Allocated Telephone Expense 601 0 563 1,541 0 1,501
Production Expense 8,537 0 2,472 13,467 0 4,292
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 124,718 74,675 92,250 258,474 170,375 215,934

.NET SERVICE INCOME <20,597> 8,072 <9,873> <46,736> 1,747 <13,969>




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended September 30, 2006

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 44 37 30,700 20,050 357,346 301,251
Consumer/Gated Shows 5 11 5,759 9,400 26,397 110,924
Devos Performance Hall 11 11 11,185 29,850 45,495 65,371
Ballroom Exclusive 5 9 2,650 7,400 . 24,897 48,187
Other 38 50 7918 11,000 99,946 160,412
GRAND TOTALS 103 118 58,212 77,700 554,081 686,145
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 42.72% 31.36% 52.74% 25.80% 64.49% 43.90%
Consumer/Gated Shows 4.85% 9.32% 9.89% 12.10% 4.76% 16.17%
Devos Performance Hall 10.68% 9.32% 19.21% 38.42% 8.21% 9.53%
Ballroom Exclusive 4.85% 7.63% 4.55% 9.52% 4.49% 7.02%

Other 36.89% 42.37% 13.60% 14.16% 18.04% 23.38%



DE VOS PLACE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED DEPOSITS
REFUND LIABILITY
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDING TO CITY - CASH
FUNDING FROM CITY - NON CASH
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

926,058

532,935

50,293
1,509,287

1,509,287

175,922
330,284
67,579
322,504
8,189

365,698

1,270,176

(750,000)
224,749
764,362
239,111

1,509,287



SMG - DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ended September 30, 2006

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 61,857
Ticketing 79,121
Decorating 27,968
Audio/Visual 25,531
Operating 223,651
Over 30 Days 78,547
Over 60 Days 21,540
Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions 5,736
Paragon Leather 1,696
Saigon Entertainment 5,002
Grinder Promotions 2,286

Total Accounts Receivable 532,935



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/06

----------------- CURRENT - = === -= === -emmmmom mmmcccccccccecc e sYTDemmmmmmmmmmmmee e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 87,912 70,649 82,440 210,878 211,947 191,109
_Part-Time 5,242 13,167 8,495 14,660 39,501 15,076
Wages-Trade 102,842 119,523 105,898 242,629 358,569 224,888
Auto Allowance 2,121 0 1,671 6,362 0 5,912
Auto Expense 150 2,271 150 450 6,813 450
_Taxes & Benefits 46,318 52,188 43,025 114,355 156,564 111,482
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <88,977> <111,581> <76,245> <190,972> <334,743> <174,625>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 155,607 146,217 165,433 398,363 438,651 374,293
Contracted Security 23,984 26,917 18,709 62,169 80,751 60,310
Contracted Cleaning 5,297 0 2,127 10,748 0 6,138
Other Contracted Services 237 200 224 707 600 671
Travel & Entertainment 0 1,209 1,169 2,189 3,627 3,807
Corporate Travel 0 417 0 0 1,251 0
Meetings & Conventions 172 1,958 0 7,234 7,374 4,388
Dues & Subscriptions 100 300 213 1,831 800 2,020
Employee Training 1,823 833 500 6,707 2,499 1,300
Computer Expense 5,293 6,250 3,899 18,868 18,750 9,530
Professional Fees 2,885 3,042 2,200 9,056 9,126 6,600
Marketing & Advertising 165 4,217 4,477 10,448 12,651 4,751
Box Office Expenses <54> 0 54 <36> 0 <72>
Small Equipment 0 0 389 0 0 389
Trash Removal 2,570 2,500 1,834 4,284 7,500 2,390
Equipment Rental 1,414 1,000 858 3,824 3,000 4,005
Landscaping <231> 833 2,436 4,224 2,499 2,436
Exterminating 1,018 23,220 20,034 2,646 47,440 20,973
Cleaning 4,500 0 5,250 4,500 17,000 9,600
Repairs & Maintenance 3,750 36,462 25,553 81,470 109,386 72,672
Supplies 3,062 18,250 6,068 74,923 54,750 35,611
Bank Service Charges 991 1,500 1,261 3,195 4,500 3,001
Insurance 16,446 22,232 18,811 46,154 66,696 50,819
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 138 [ 0
Printing & Stationary 117 917 0 233 2,751 0
Office Supplies 0 750 1,254 149 2,250 3,283
Postage 202 417 500 1,110 1,251 694
Parking Expense 1,823 1,500 1,663 6,328 4,500 5,014
Telephone Long Distance 7,848 6,000 7,003 22,080 18,000 11,289
Utilities 73,919 81,500 66,286 224,749 224,500 216,367
Bage Fee 12,500 12,500 20,683 37,500 37,500 62,048
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <601> <1,833> <563> <1,541> <5,499> <1,501>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 169,227 253,091 212,889 645,888 735,553 598,531
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 324,834 399,308 378,322 1,044,252 1,174,204 972,824




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,613 (799,982) 693,631 603,704
Benchmark 700,000 534,919
Excess 1,493,613 (799,982) (6,369) 68,785

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual

Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,087,324 4,486,451 9,573,775 9,374,417

Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384

Revenue Excess 487,324 486,451 973,775 1,117,033

Incentive Fee ** - 229,259
Total SMG Management Fee 300,000 719,659

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IIL.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

The first quarter of the fiscal year has been a little slower on the event side

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
12 109 121 121 -
49,512 621,200 670,712 680,500 (9,788)
230,550 1,055,839 1,286,389 1,284,118 2,271
158,389 1,375,296 1,633,685 1,456,159 77,526
388,939 2,431,135 2,820,074 2,740,277 79,797
543,770 1,723,480 2,267,250 2,240,000 27,250
932,709 4,154,615 5,087,324 4,980,277 107,047
34,896 111,429 146,325 118,845 (27,480)
46,150 153,487 199,637 197,258 (2,379)
54,436 258,798 313,234 315,994 2,760
351,348 1,001,698 1,363,046 1,337,761 (15,285)
34,416 73,784 108,200 106,590 (1,610)
15,615 96,297 111,912 115,775 3,863
8,514 32,651 41,165 39,856 (1,309)
240,123 1,080,069 1,320,192 1,342,153 21,961
785,498 2,808,213 3,593,711 3,574,232 (19,479)
147,211 1,346,402 1,493,613 1,406,045 87,568
103,994 103,994 103,994
147,211 1,242,408 1,389,619 1,302,051 87,568

than what has been seen in the past. However, the events have been selling

very well, a trend that looks to continue at least through the second quarter
of the fiscal year. The revised forecast does call for an improvement over

the original budget, and the second quarter will be the catalyst in that

improvement.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending September 30, 2006
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

EVENT INCOME

September September September
Actual Budget FY 2006
6 7 10
33,010 44,600 36,228
$187,045 $159,071 $34,469
116,851 123,577 89,099
194,461 186,667 179,705
(290,378) (297,242) (312,828)
$207,978 $172,073 ($9,556)
YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2006
Actual Budget Prior Year
12 10 16
49,512 62,700 71,813
$230,550 $222,781 $135,550
158,389 192,762 196,759
543,770 560,001 525,905
(785,498) (891,726) (843,200)
$147,211 $83,818 $15,014

Event income came in ahead of budget for the month due to the very successful Eric Clapton concert
and Professional Bull Rider events. Two concerts were budgeted for the month, however, the strength
of these two events (3 days) offset the shortfall from hosting only one concert.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below expecations for the month. Food & Beverage performed very well for both
of the above events, however, hosting only one concert did cause a shortfall in Merchandise revenue.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month overall.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/06

----------------- CURRENT-----==-m-cmmcccmemn eme e mccccm e e e YD mmmmmmmm e cmeee s
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 186,257 164,000 97,170 231,939 234,000 204,536
SERVICES INCOME 788 <4,929> <62,702> <1,389> <11,219> <68,987>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 187,045 159,071 34,469 230,550 222,781 135,550
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 96,436 94,737 76,643 128,914 142,502 160,583
NOVELTY 20,335 27,670 12,456 30,596 49,090 35,427
OTHER ANCILLARY 80 1,170 0 <1,120> 1,170 749
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 116,851 123,577 89,099 158,389 192,762 196,759
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 303,895 282,648 123,568 388,939 415,543 332,309
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 194,461 186,667 179,705 543,770 560,001 525,905
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 498,357 469,315 303,272 932,710 975,544 858,214
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 15,735 9,778 12,218 34,896 29,334 29,583
FINANCE 16,351 16,314 20,245 46,150 48,942 50,628
MARKETING 21,702 26,209 30,129 54,436 78,627 66,446
LUXURY SEATING 6,046 9,648 8,585 15,615 28,944 20,628
OPERATIONS 121,885 111,228 133,472 351,348 333,684 350,208
BOX OFFICE 20,227 8,897 13,099 34,416 26,691 27,008
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 2,467 3,322 2,135 8,514 9,966 8,291
OVERHEAD 85,966 111,846 92,945 240,123 335,538 290,408
INDIRECT EXPENSES 290,378 297,242 312,828 785,498 891,726 843,200
NET OPERATING INCOME 207,978 172,073 <9,556> 147,212 83,818 15,014
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS} 207,978 172,073 <9,556> 147,212 83,818 15,014




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/06

---------------- CURRENT-----------=----- --------------YEAR TO DATE-----------~-

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 9,809 0 12,931 30,445 0 49,626
Labor Billed 2,300 1,080 768 2,900 2,160 3,288
Changeover Setup Billed 5,374 10,100 3,593 8,764 16,700 20,133
Stagehands Billed 42,077 55,500 36,269 55,180 85,500 85,695
Security Billed 14,832 16,000 8,631 21,749 28,000 32,134
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 10,713 12,000 2,949 14,370 19,000 19,990
Box Office Billed 387 800 387 1,124 1,600 1,742
Ticketing Service Billed 4,076 20,000 7,946 6,173 37,500 14,071
Utilities Billed 0 0 0 0 0 1,800
City Police Fire Billed 350 672 336 700 1,344 1,512
EMT Medical Billed 1,775 2,200 1,275 2,425 3,400 3,525
Production Materials Billed 0 0 3,778 0 0 3,778
Cleaning Billed 12,769 13,200 3,030 17,314 20,400 13,042
Group Sales Commissions Billed 525 0 1,945 819 0 2,165
Telephone Billed 1,575 1,900 1,050 3,475 3,500 3,150
Other Production Billed 26,926 29,600 15,971 37,265 44,200 85,872
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 133,487 163,052 100,857 202,702 263,304 341,522
Advertising Expense 10,378 0 14,232 31,507 0 52,610
Labor Wages 1,955 918 652 2,465 1,836 2,794
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 10,491 14,182 7,942 15,542 23,182 23,491
Stagehand Wages 40,025 54,219 42,119 53,217 84,727 87,062
Contracted Security Expense 15,301 17,000 27,887 23,643 28,700 53,347
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 10,786 14,800 15,624 15,542 22,900 35,628
Ticket Sellers Wages 513 0 329 1,139 0 1,480
Ticket Service Charge Expense 4,079 20,000 6,414 6,062 37,500 12,220
City Police Fire Expense 725 672 336 837 1,344 1,512
EMT Medical Expense 1,634 2,363 2,059 2,369 3,806 4,153
Contracted Cleaning Expense 11,773 18,600 18,229 15,994 27,645 32,949
Group Sales Commissions 701 0 559 878 0 559
Allocated Telephone Expense 473 627 315 1,043 1,683 735
Production Expense 23,868 24,600 26,863 33,853 41,200 101,968
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 132,700 167,981 163,559 204,091 274,523 410,509

NET SERVICE INCOME 788 <4,929> <62,702> <1,389> <11,219> <68,987>




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending September 30, 2006

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS
As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
2 2 10,702 11,000 115,167 75,734
1 1 4,681 2,500 18,190 6,017
2 4 22,888 31,200 181,131 253,756
7 3 11,241 18,000 74,449 80,036
12 10 49,512 62,700 388,937 415,543
16.67% 20.00% 21.61% 17.54% 29.61% 18.23%
8.33% 10.00% 9.45% 3.99% 4.68% 1.45%
16.67% 40.00% 46.23% 49.76% 46.57% 61.07%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
58.33% 30.00% 22.70% 28.71% 19.14% 19.26%



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH 4,088,993
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2,067,302

PREPAID EXPENSES 63,701
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,219,995

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS -
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS -

TOTAL ASSETS 6,219,995

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1,361,384
ACCRUED EXPENSES 270,136
DEFERRED INCOME 1,957,564
ADVANCED TICKET SALES 1,979,816
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB. 5,568,900
FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED (700,000)
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA 142,559
AMOUNT DUE CAA 1,208,536
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 651,095

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY 6,219,995




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending September 30, 2006

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 107,474

Ticketing 584,741

Merchandise -

Permanent Advertising 897,684

Operating 205,267
Over 30 Days 205,986
Over 60.Days 36,498
Over 90 Days

Time Out for Women 29,652

Total Accounts Receivable 2,067,302



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/06

----------------- CURRENT - = = = == == === wmmmme mmmmmmmmmcm e w e YTDm o m oo m oo mm oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 70,685 59,541 78,681 176,116 178,623 185,662
Part-Time 4,976 5,833 7,338 10,028 17,499 13,210
Wages-Trade 73,241 69,232 86,751 151, 327 207,696 187,954
Sales Commissions Group Sales 2,483 0 1,362 4,316 0 1,362
Auto Allowance 594 985 427 1,781 2,955 1,731
Auto Expense 300 0 . 300 900 0 900
Taxes & Benefits 38,414 38,187 41,717 91,208 114,561 108,003
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <62,367> <59,837> <65,034> <107,696> <179,511> <129,974>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 128,326 113,941 151,541 327,981 341,823 368,848
Contracted Security 20,154 19,760 19,139 61,677 59,280 59,407
Contracted Cleaning 2,325 3,250 1,863 7,794 9,750 13,040
Other Contracted Services 368 300 314 10,416 900 2,214
Travel & Entertainment 529 858 1,138 3,866 2,574 2,445
Corporate Travel 0 625 509 0 1,875 509
Meetings & Conventions 0 350 0 399 1,050 763
Dues & Subscriptions 395 208 113 1,252 624 1,099
Employee Training 500 750 0 1,808 2,250 337
Computer Expense 3,565 5,417 8,453 14,262 16,251 19,523
Professional Fees 3,275 2,583 1,875 7,282 7,749 6,276
Marketing & Advertising 11,108 15,000 7,415 13,237 45,000 13,204
Box Office Expenses 108 0 <720> <427> 0 <1,336>
Trash Removal 838 1,500 887 3,164 4,500 2,831
Equipment Rental 1,081 500 1,160 3,891 1,500 4,647
Landscaping 499 483 1,134 1,624 1,449 1,134
Exterminating 698 300 248 698 900 1,304
Cleaning 0 150 0 2,650 450 2,650
Rental Office Equipment 0 750 0 0 2,250 0
Repairs & Maintenance 20,291 9,333 20,823 48,388 27,999 39,525
Supplies 14,333 15,758 16,894 49,957 47,274 52,296
Bank Service Charges 310 750 502 911 2,250 1,377
Insurance 11,962 15,179 11,064 24,089 45,537 32,615
Printing & Stationary 151 917 0 1,001 2,751 0
office Supplies 0 1,000 795 951 3,000 4,633
Postage 1,682 1,000 92 3,706 3,000 2,110
Parking Expense 2,587 2,000 2,076 7,400 6,000 6,793
Telephone Long Distance 5,722 7,000 4,305 16,054 21,000 24,463
Utilities 49,733 68,400 43,484 142,559 205,200 128,029
Base Fee 12,500 12,500 19,935 37,500 37,500 60,552
Common Area Expense <2,188> <2,945> <1,893> <7,550> <8,835> <7,352>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <473> <375> <315> <1,043> <1,125> <735>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 162,052 183,301 161,287 457,517 549,903 474,352
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 290,378 297,242 312,828 785,498 891,726 843,200




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,613 (799,982) 693,631 603,704
Benchmark 700,000 534,919
Excess 1,493,613 (799,982) (6,369) 68,785

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual

Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,087,324 4,486,451 9,573,775 9,374,417

Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384

Revenue Excess 487,324 486,451 973,775 1,117,033

Incentive Fee ** - 229,259
Total SMG Management Fee 300,000 719,659

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IILDb.ii.

8:20 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
10/16/06 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2006
Sep 30, 06
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG 4,299,504.10
1050 - Operations - Cash 568,101.23
Total Checking/Savings 4,867,605.33

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating

19,155,890.12

1200 - Accounts Receivable 2,021,241.17
1300 - Prepaid Expenses 144,082.29
1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable -1,450,000.07

Total Other Current Assets

19,871,213.51

Total Current Assets 24,738,818.84
Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Depreciation -41,778.69
Original Cost 322,431.00
Total Buildings & Structures 280,652.31
Equip
Depreciation -437,774.44
Original Cost 778,271.02
Total Equip 340,496.58
Vehicles 43,914.30
Total Fixed Assets 665,063.19
TOTAL ASSETS 25,403,882.03
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 176,680.10
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG N 486.224.17_
Total Accounts Payable 662,904.27
Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses 717,173.61
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales 1,872,750.73
2220 - Advance deposits 299,103.00
2500 - Deferred facility income 744,284.74
Total Other Current Liabilities 3,633,312.08
Total Current Liabilities 4,296,216.35
Total Liabilities 4,296,216.35
Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity 37,035,584 .45
3900 - Retained Earnings -15,526,165.80
Net Income -401 ,752.S_JZ
Total Equity 21,107,665.68

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

25,403,882.03




2:37 PM
10/13/06

Type

Date

Num

Reconciliation Detail

1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 09/30/2006

Name

Memo

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 32 items

Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
8ill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Check

Check

Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
8ill Pmt -Check
Bilt Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Transfer
Check

Check

Check

Check

8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
8/28/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/12006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/12006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/12006
9/13/2006
9/15/2006
9/15/2006
9/28/2006
9/29/2006

6442
6443
6444
6445
6446
6447
6448
6449
6450
6441
6439
6438
6440
10140
10140
6453
6454
6455
6456
6457
6458
6459
6460
6461
6462
6464
6452

10141
10141

10142

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 103 items

Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit

8/31/2006
8/31/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/5/2006
9/5/2006
9/6/2006
9/6/2006
9/7/12006
9/7/12006
9/7/12006
9/8/2006
9/8/2006
9/8/2006
9/8/2006
9/9/2006
9/8/2006
9/9/2006
9/11/2006
9/11/2006
9/11/2006
9/11/2006
9/12/2006
9/12/2006
9/12/2006
9/12/2006
9/13/2006
9/13/2006
9/13/2006
9/14/2006
9/14/2006
9/14/2006
9/14/2006
9/14/2006
9/14/2006
9/15/2006
9/15/2006
9/15/2006
9/15/2006

Feyen-Zylstra Inc

Gordon Food Service, Inc.
Grand Rapids City Treasurer
ICMA Retirement Corporati...
ICMA Retirement Corporati...
lllinois Mutual

Nye Uniform

Panda Promotional Products
Priority Health

DTE Energy

Consumers Energy

City of Grand Rapids-Risk ...
Dickinson Wright PLLC
Susan M. Waddeli

Susan M. Waddell
Consumers Energy
Dickinson Wright PLLC
Grand Rapids City Treasurer
ICMA Retirement Corporati...
ICMA Retirement Corporati...

Jackson National Life Ins. C...

Kent Count Dept of Public ...
McConomy Properties LLC
Rapid Hot Coffee Service

Schindler Elevator Corporati...

Wenger
BDO Seidman, LLP

Susan M. Waddell
Susan M. Waddell

Susan M. Waddell

Funds Transfer

Service Charge

DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
Premium Return

DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue

DeVos Performance Hall hearing loop s...
Van Andel Arena land lease: August 2006

DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
Interest

DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue
DeVos Place parking revenue

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Cir

R P TP LT 223 23 2 2 0 0 P 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 3 P P

><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><

Amount Balance
1,552,852.68
-7,390.00 -7,390.00
-7,892.91 -15,282.91
-847.00 -16,129.91
-271.40 -16,401.31
-50.00 -16,451.31
-1,689.00 -18,140.31
-7,001.81 -25,142.12
-3,746.84 -28,888.96
-370.42 -29,259.38
-451.81 -29,711.19
-35,727.12 -65,438.31
-4,746.86 -70,185.17
-1,668.37 -71,853.54
-826.11 -72,679.65
-1,490.70 -74,170.35
-35,399.56 -109,569.91
-6,998.42 -116,568.33
-8,206.24 -124,864.57
-271.40 -125,135.97
-50.00 -125,185.97
-287.00 -125,472.97
-12,345.30 -137,818.27
-1,750.00 -139,568.27
-28.98 -139,597.25
-48,080.00 -187,677.25
-21,148.00 -208,825.25
-4,250.00 -213,075.25
-850,000.00 -1,063,075.25
-931.05 -1,064,006.30
-1,490.70 -1,065,497.00
-9.00 -1,065,506.00
-931.05 -1,066,437.05
-1,086,437.05 -1,066,437.05
23.00 23.00
34.00 57.00
31.00 88.00
20.00 108.00
28.00 136.00
54.00 180.00
53.00 243.00
259.00 502.00
49.00 551.00
282.00 833.00
160.00 993.00
108.00 1,101.00
156.00 1,257.00
304.00 1,561.00
251.00 1,812.00
754.00 2,566.00
143.00 2,709.00
102.50 2,811.50
217.00 3,028.50
380.00 3,408.50
5,437.00 8,845.50
967.50 9,813.00
640.00 10,453.00
220.50 10,673.50
1,224.00 11,897.50
542.00 12,439.50
271.00 12,710.50
408.00 13,118.50
71.00 13,189.50
90,124.05 103,313.55
11,522.00 114,835.55
188.50 115,024.05
66.00 115,090.05
1,606.46 116,696.51
209.00 116,905.51
47.00 116,852.51
622.00 117,574.51
60.00 117,634.51
293.00 117,927.51

-2 -



2:37PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10/13/06 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 09/30/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir
Deposit 9/15/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/16/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/16/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/16/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/18/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/18/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/19/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/19/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/19/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/19/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/19/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/19/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/20/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/20/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/20/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/20/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/20/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/2172006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/22/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/22/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/22/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/22/2008 ) DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/22/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/22/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/24/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/24/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/24/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/24/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/25/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/25/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/25/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/25/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/26/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/27/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/27/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/27/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/27/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/27/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/28/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X
Deposit 9/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X

Total Deposits and Credits
Total Cleared Transactions

Cleared Balance

Amount

208.00
117.00
51.50
533.00
152.00
49.00
56.00
152.00
108.00
27.00
230.00
558.00
295.00
485.00
58.50
652.00
788.00
606.00
203.00
851.50
264.00
68.00
175.00
436.00
806.00
205.00
2,043.50
525.00
426.50
398.00
421.00
756.00
305.50
1,280.00
370.50
201.50
84.50
52.00
364.00
897.00
498.50
355.00
67.00
66.00
313.00
351.00
260.00
37.00
270.00
893.25
575.00
180.00
256.00
468.00
193.00
256.50
175.00
233.00
10.00
25.00
438.00
196.00
5.00
240.50

" 140,548.76

-925,888.29

-925,888.29

Balance

118,135.51
118,252.51
118,304.01
118,837.01
118,989.01
119,038.01
119,094.01
119,246.01
119,354.01
119,381.01
119,611.01
120,169.01
120,464.01
120,949.01
121,007.51
121,659.51
122,447.51
123,053.51
123,256.51
124,108.01
124,372.01
124,440.01
124,615.01
125,051.01
125,857.01
126,062.01
128,105.51
128,630.51
129,057.01
129,455.01
129,876.01
130,632.01
130,937.51
132,217.51
132,588.01
132,789.51
132,874.01
132,926.01
133,290.01
134,187.01
134,685.51
135,040.51
135,107.51
135,173.51
136,486.51
135,837.61
136,097.51
136,134.51
136,404.51
137,297.76
137,872.76
138,052.76
138,308.76
138,776.76
138,969.76
139,226.26
139,401.26
139,634.26
139,644.26
139,669.26
140,107.26
140,303.26
140,308.26
140,548.76

140,548.76

-925,888.29

626,964.39



2:37 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
10113106 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 09/30/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr

Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 9 items

8ill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6112 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check 9/1/2006 6463 The Mail Order Shoppe
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6469 ICMA Retirement Corporati...
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6470 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6468 ICMA Retirement Corporati...
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6466 DTE Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6465 Consumers Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6467 Grand Rapids City Treasurer
Check 9/29/2006 10142 Susan M. Waddell

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 13 items

Deposit 9/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/30/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/30/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/30/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/30/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/30/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/30/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 9/30/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue

Total Deposits and Credits
Total Uncleared Transactions

Register Balance as of 09/30/2006

New Transactions
Checks and Payments - 23 items
Check 10/13/2006 10143 Susan M. Waddell
Check 10/13/2006 10143 Susan M. Waddell

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6508 Rapid Hot Coffee Service
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6509 SMG Food & Beverage, LLC
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6510 Sysco Grand Rapids

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6511 Tele-Rad, Inc.

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6512 Venue 1, Inc.

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6507 Pioneer Distributing Company
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6506 Michigan Municipal Risk Ma...
8ill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6505 Kent Count Dept of Public ...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6504 Integra

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6503 IFMA

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6502 ICMA Retirement Corporati...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6501 ICMA Retirement Corporati...
Bilt Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6500 Hobart Sales & Service

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6499 Grand Rapids City Treasurer
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6498 Gordon Food Service, Inc.
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6497 Feyen-Zylstra Inc

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6496 Falcon Printing, Inc.

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6495 Eastern Floral

Bilt Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6493 Consumers Energy

8ill Pmt -Check 10/16/2008 6492 Carlson Design

Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6494 Dickinson Wright PLLC

Total Checks and Payments

Amount Balance
-398.73 -398.73
-62.91 -461.64
-50.00 -511.64
-370.42 -882.06
-271.40 -1,153.46
-352.19 -1,505.65
-54,810.38 -56,316.03
-3,576.93 -59,892.96
-1,490.70 -61,383.66
-61,383.66 -61,383.66
273.00 273.00
33.00 306.00
151.00 457.00
364.00 821.00
95.00 916.00
108.50 1,024.50
189.50 1,214.00
84.50 1,298.50
110.50 1,409.00
84.50 1,493.50
156.00 1,649.50
624.00 2,273,50
247.00 2,520.50
2,520.50
-58,863.16 -58,863.16
-084,751.45 568,101.23
-1,490.70 -1,490.70
-826.11 -2,316.81
-20.50 -2,337.31
-1,616.26 -3,953.57
-674.03 -4,627.60
-2,423.97 -7,051.57
-75,473.94 -82,525.51
-5,397.00 -87,922.51
-19,887.00 -107,809.51
-19,918.87 -127,728.38
-4,470.00 -132,198.38
-368.00 -132,566.38
-100.00 -132,666.38
-542.80 -133,209.18
-7,795.37 -141,004.55
-3,706.23 -144,710.78
-3,145.97 -147,856.75
-3,702.63 -151,559.38
-465.00 -152,024.38
-82.95 -152,107.33
-68,091.50 -220,198.83
-300.00 -220,498.83
-2,779.10 -223,277.93
-223,277.93 -223,277.93



2:37 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10113106 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 09/30/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance
Deposits and Credits - 52 items

Deposit 10/1/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 91.00 91.00
Deposit 10/1/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 84.50 175.50
Deposit 10/1/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 292.50 468.00
Deposit 10/2/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 288.00 756.00
Deposit 10/2/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 26.00 782.00
Deposit 10/3/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 614.00 1,396.00
Deposit 10/3/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 534.50 1,930.50
Deposit 10/3/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 234.00 2,164.50
Deposit 10/3/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 476.00 2,640.50
Deposit 10/3/2006 : DeVos Place parking revenue 5.00 2,645.50
Deposit 10/3/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue: August 2... 227.00 2,872.50
Deposit 10/3/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 54.00 2,926.50
Deposit 10/4/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 822.00 3,748.50
Deposit 10/4/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 452.00 4,200.50
Deposit 10/4/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 167.00 4,367.50
Deposit 10/4/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 128.00 4,495.50
Deposit 10/4/2006 ) DeVos Place parking revenue 433.00 4,928.50
Deposit 10/5/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 251.00 5,179.50
Deposit 10/5/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 74.00 5,253.50
Deposit 10/5/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 5.00 5,258.50
Deposit 10/5/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 287.00 5,645.50
Deposit 10/5/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 754.00 6,299.50
Deposit 10/5/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 332.50 6,632.00
Deposit 10/5/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 136.00 6,768.00
Deposit 10/6/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue 317.50 7,085.50
Deposit 10/6/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 110.50 7,196.00
Deposit 10/6/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 586.50 7,782.50
Deposit 10/6/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 244.50 8,027.00
Deposit 10/6/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 53.00 8,080.00
Deposit 10/6/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 65.00 8,135.00
Deposit 10/6/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 440.50 8,575.50
Deposit 10/6/2006 Van Andel Arena land lease: Septembe... 11,522.00 20,097.50
Deposit 10/6/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 58.00 20,155.50
Deposit 10/7/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 266.50 20,422.00
Deposit 10/7/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 286.00 20,708.00
Deposit 10/7/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 247.00 20,955.00
Deposit 10/7/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 500.50 21,455.50
Deposit 10/7/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 117.00 21,572.50
Deposit 10/8/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 39.00 21,611.50
Deposit 10/8/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 97.50 21,709.00
Deposit 10/8/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 45,50 21,754.50
Deposit 10/9/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 52.00 21,806.50
Deposit 10/9/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 627.00 22,433.50
Deposit 10/9/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue 455.00 22,888.50
Deposit 10/9/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 911.50 23,800.00
Deposit 10/9/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 80.00 23,880.00
Deposit 10/9/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 250.00 24,130.00
Deposit 10/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 1,574.00 25,704.00
Deposit 10/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 687.00 26,391.00
Deposit 10/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 534.50 26,925.50
Deposit 10/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 39.00 26,964.50
Deposit 10/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 364.00 27,328.50
Total Deposits and Credits 27,328.50 27,328.50

Total New Transactions -195,949.43 -195,949.43

-1,180,700.88 372,151.80

Ending Balance




2:19 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
10/13/06 Reconciliation Detail
1070 - Kent County - Operating, Period Ending 08/31/2006
Type Date Num Name Memo i Clr_ - __Amogn_t o ) Ba_l_gnce
Beginning Balance 18,231,869.30
Cleared Transactions
_ Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Deposit 8/1/2006 Interest X 74,020.82 74,020.82
Total Deposits and Credits 74,020.82 74,020.82
Total Cleared Transactions 7402082 1 74,020.82
Cleared Balance _______ﬁ____y_.()_Z_g.:B_% o _1§.305.890.12
Register Balance as of 08/31/2006 74,020.82 18,305,890.12
New Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Transfer 9/13/2006 Funds Transfer o 850.(3(_)_0_.90_ o _§€_>0.000.00
Total Deposits and Credits o 85(1,00000 - 85_0_,_(_)_(_)_0.00
Total New Transactions ___%"0*09920 D= _§§9_'990'0°
Ending Balance 924,020.82 19,155,890.12




Z0T3uy

X€ qdLS0d4d

ZT1°068'S0E’ST
z8°020'%L
28°020'%L

LNOOWY LIN

TI:L%:0T 90/8T/80 ZT°068'S0€'8T

‘¥3ovd

agrLsod IWIL

z8°020'%L INIddav
0€°698'T€ET'8T
FONY'IYL SNOILONQad SNOILICQQY godnos
€ET6E€T T2ZZ TOLO :YIIWAN ONIIVYIdO-¥YO @ aNAJd

Tl <

FONYIVE ATIVA FOVIIAVY

z8°020 ‘WL TYLOL
0 z8°0Z0 ‘%L T €
INOOWY ON INOOWY ON  HdAL
meemmmeme- SNOIIDQQEQ---- ---=-=---- SNOTLIAQY------

FA0O HEdAL Xd dVOEY

90/T€/80 HONOYHIL 90/10/80
YADATT aNAd T SIIVYES

LNEX J40 AINAOD

£ 90/10/80

JdAL arva

Z€:80 90/0Z/60

*NOY
*Ld¥T



8:26 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10/16/06 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through September 2006
Jul - Sep 06
Income
4040 - Private Support -90,872.66
4500 - Interest on Investments 149,470.13
4540 - Land Lease 23,044.00
4545 - Parking Revenues 71,679.25
Total Income 1563,320.72
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 314.82
6040 - Legal Services 9,777.52
Total 6000 - Professional Services 10,092.34
6060 - Other Contractual Services 1,500.00
6068 - Parking Management 22,220.00
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 9.00
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 19,196.86
6110 - Meeting Expense 49.48
6120 - Supplies 710.20
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 19,965.54
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 175,111.78
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 10,219.34
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 225,788.35
6310 - Natural Gas 1,219.28
6320 - Steam 47,092.49
6340 - Water & Sewer 2091_739
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 295,048.10
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 15,195.83
8030 - Employee Benefits ____5_,_7_2_0_.19
Total 8000 - Personal Services 20,916.59
Total Expense 555,073.69
Net Income -401,752.97




8:26 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10/16/08
Accrual Basis

Income
4040 - Private Support
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
8040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

8080 - Other Contractual Services
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 8100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 8300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss by Fund
July through September 2006

Admin & Capital Replacement

(Operations) Total Operations TOTAL
-90,872.66 -90,872.66 -90,872.66
149,470.13 149,470.13 149,470.13
23,044.00 23,044.00 23,044.00
71,679.25 71,679.25 71,679.25
153,320.72 153,320.72 153,320.72
314.82 314.82 314.82
9,777.52 9,777.52 9,777.52
10,092.34 10,092.34 10,092.34
1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
22,220.00 22,220.00 22,220.00
9.00 9.00 9.00
19,196.86 19,196.86 19,196.86
49.48 49.48 49.48
710.20 710.20 710.20
19,965.54 19,965.54 19,965.54
175,111.78 175,111.78 175,111.78
10,219.34 10,219.34 10,219.34
225,788.35 225,788.35 225,788.35
1,219.28 1,219.28 1,219.28
47,092.49 47,092.49 47,092.49
20,947.98 20,947.98 20,947.98
295,048.10 295,048.10 295,048.10
15,195.83 15,195.83 15,195.83
5,720.76 5,720.76 5,720.76
20,916.59 20,916.59 20.916.??
655,073.69 566,073.69 555,073.69
-401,752.97 -401,752.97

~401,752.97




8:29 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10/16/06
Accrual Basis

Income
4040 - Private Support
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease’
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
8001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 8100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
8210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8500 - DID Assessment

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through September 2006

Jul - Sep 06 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
-90,872.66
149,470.13 196,251.00 -46,780.87 76.2%
23,044.00 38,649.00 -15,605.00 59.6%
71,679.25 183,642.00 -111,962.75 39.0%
0.00 3,750.00 -3,750.00 0.0%
153,320.72 422,292.00 -268,971.28 36.3%
314.82 6,501.00 -6,186.18 4.8%
9,777.52 7.500.00 2,277.52 130.4%
10,092.34 14,001.00 -3,908.66 72.1%
1,500.00 15,000.00 -13,500.00 10.0%
0.00 20,001.00 -20,001.00 0.0%
22,220.00 84,309.00 -62,089.00 26.4%
9.00
19,196.86 5,001.00 14,195.86 383.9%
49.48 999.00 -949.62 5.0%
710.20 2,499.00 -1,788.80 28.4%
19,965.54 8,499.00 11,466.54 234.9%
175,111.78 271,500.00 -96,388.22 64.5%
10,219.34
225,788.35 298,500.00 -72,711.65 75.6%
1,219.28 4,500.00 -3,280.72 27.1%
47,092.49 277,374.00 -230,281.51 17.0%
20,947.98 3,096.00 17,851.98 676.6%
295,048.10 583,470.00 -288,421.90 50.6%
0.00 12,414.00 -12,414.00 0.0%
15,195.83 14,700.00 495.83 103.4%
5,720.76 5,268.00 452.76 108.9‘_"/?
20,916.59 19,968.00 948.59 104.9%
555,073.69 1,029,162.00 -474,088.31 53.9%
-401,752.97 -606,870.00 205,117.03 66.2%

-10 -



8:34 AM

10/16/06
Accrual Basis

Income

4040 -
4500 -
4540 -
4545 -
4550 -

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
July through September 2006

Private Support
Interest on Investments
Land Lease

Parking Revenues
Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 -
6060 -
6065 -
6068 -
6100 -
6160 -
6200 -
6210 -
6300 -
8000 -

Professional Services

Other Contractual Services
Pedestrian Safety

Parking Management

Other Supplies & Expenses
Facility Repair and Maintenance
Capital Replacement Projects
F&B Repair & Maintenance
Utilities Expense

Personal Services

Total Expense

Net Income

Jul-Sep06  Jul - Sep 05 $ Change % Change
-90,872.66 0.00 -90,872.66 -100.0%
149,470.13 108,983.10 40,487.03 37.2%

23,044.00 34,566.00 -11,522.00 -33.3%
71,679.25 67,688.75 3,990.50 5.9%

i 0.00 23,400.00 -23,400.00 -100.0%

153,320.72 234,637.85 -81,317.13 -34.7%

10,092.34 934.82 9,157.52 979.6%
1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.0%
0.00 7,910.93 -7,910.93 -100.0%
22,220.00 42,545.00 -20,325.00 -47.8%
19,965.54 9,260.11 10,705.43 115.6%
0.00 27,306.25 -27,306.25 -100.0%
175,111.78 110,000.00 65,111.78 59.2%
10,219.34 0.00 10,219.34 100.0%
295,048.10 257,831.91 37,216.19 14.4%
20,916.59 9,080.63 11,835.96 130.3%
555,073.69 464,869.65 90,204.04 19.4%
-401,752.97 -230,231.80 -171,521.17 -714.5%

-11 -



DeVos Place,
as Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements
as of and for the Years Ended

June 30, 2006 and 2005, and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Item IILb.iii.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS
ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005:

Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising From Activities Managed by SMG
Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising From Activities Managed by SMG

Notes to Special-purpose Financial Statements

Page

69



D I i
e o l tte Deloitte & Touche LLP

700 Bridgewater Place

333 Bridge St., NN\W.

Grand Rapids, Ml 49504-5359
USA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax: +1 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

DeVos Place, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose financial statements of DeVos Place, as managed by
SMG (“SMG-DeVos Place™), as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and for the years then ended, as listed in the
table of contents. These special-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the management of
SMG-DeVos Place. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special-purpose financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the special-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
ht effectiveness of SMG-DeVos Place’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the special-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall special-
purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to present
the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash
flows of DeVos Place arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a
complete presentation of DeVos Place’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of SMG-DeVos Place as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-DeVos Place and

officials of the Grand Rapids—Kent County Convention/Arena Authority, and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

bﬁ@/’ﬂé ¢ Toueke co

September 8, 2006

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT

DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
AS OF JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:
Operating
Ticket sales escrow
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $16,729 in 2006 and 2005
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance ticket sales
Advance deposits
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special purpose financial statements.

2006 2005
$1,825315  $2,022,233
98,429 44,602
302,391 249,345
23,175 70,094
$2,249310  $2,386,274
$ 119,029 $ 386,199
490,550 390,626
98,429 44,602
271,603 267,943

53,800

1,033,411 1,089,370
1,215,899 1,296,904
$2,249310  $2,386,274




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING

EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events
Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Decorating
Electrical

Equipment rental
Other

Total net ancillary revenues

Total events and net ancillary revenues

Other, including interest income of $44,754 and $22,944

in 2006 and 2005, respectively
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES, BEFORE INCENTIVE
MANAGEMENT FEE

Incentive management fee

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

See notes to special purpose financial statements.

2006 2005
$2,312271  $ 2,087,240
801,861 505,592
322,655 251,028
448,097 333,876
457,566 332,013
48,376 43,341
2,078,555 1,465,850
4,390,826 3,553,090
168,888 125,690
4,559,714 3,678,780
1,635,247 1,529,092
452,136 211,103
236,731 273,014
1,574,731 1,435,537
1,272,513 1,172,641
5,171,358 4,621,387
(611,644) (942,607)
180,467 86,953
$ (792,111)  $(1,029,560)




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT DUE
OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

2006 2005
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR—Beginning of year $1,296,904 $ 1,291,452
DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES
OVER OPERATING EXPENSES (792,111) (1,029,560)
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM OPERATOR 1,661,106 1,485,012
AMOUNTS PAID TO OPERATOR (950,000) (450,000)
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR—End of year $1,215,899 $ 1,296,904

See notes to special purpose financial statements.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS

ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Deficiency of operating revenues over operating expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance deposits and ticket sales

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from operator
Amounts paid to operator

Net cash provided by financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH

OPERATING CASH—Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH—End of year

See notes to special purpose financial statements.

2006 2005
$ (792,111)  $(1,029,560)
(53,046) 621,822
46,919 (65,338)
(267,170) (547,291)
153,724 24,079
3,660 24,654
(908,024) (971,634)
1,661,106 1,485,012
(950,000) (450,000)
711,106 1,035,012
(196,918) 63,378
2,022,233 1,958,855
$1,825315  § 2,022,233




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

1. OPERATIONS

DeVos Place provides space for conventions, trade shows, concerts, meetings, banquets, and other
performances. DeVos Place is operated by the Grand Rapids—Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator™).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) with SMG to manage the
operations of DeVos Place. The activities of DeVos Place that are managed by SMG are referred to
herein as “SMG-DeVos Place.”

The Operator, from time to time, provides funding to SMG-DeVos Place to pay the obligations of
DeVos Place when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of
DeVos Place.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting and include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the
Agreement, measured in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Accordingly, the special-purpose financial statements do not include property and
equipment, noncontractual repair expenditures, and related fund equity associated with DeVos Place, or
certain other activities of the Operator related to DeVos Place that are not part of the activities managed
by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for employees hired by SMG to manage DeVos Place under
the Agreement. These employees are not employees of the Operator. The accompanying special-purpose
financial statements are intended solely for the information and use of the management and officials of
the Operator and SMG, and are not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Use of Estimates—Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of operating revenues and
operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its estimates to be reasonable;
however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advance Ticket Sales—DeVos Place incurs a liability for all cash received from ticket sales in advance
of an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Revenues are not recognized
until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income—Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
premium seating which are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over the lives of the related
contract.



Event Revenues—SMG-DeVos Place records event revenue upon the completion of the event.
Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as
liabilities until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged
to expense upon completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues—All concession and catering, decorating, electrical and audio visual revenues are
recognized when earned. Concession revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross
receipts collected by the vendor for each event.

Other Operating Revenues—Other operating revenues are comprised of interest income, nonevent
equipment rental income, ticket rebates, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs—From time to time, SMG-DeVos Place incurs costs funded by the Operator’s
capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator
to DeVos Place. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed. These
costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose statement of operating
revenues and operating expenses, and are included in the special-purpose statement of changes in
amount due Operator, as part of amounts paid to Operator.

Reclassifications—Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2005 financial statements to conform
to the 2006 presentation.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

Under the Agreement between SMG and the Operator, the Operator pays SMG an annual base
management fee. The annual base management fee is adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year).

Under the Agreement, SMG also receives an incentive fee based on the combined results of operations
of the Arena and DeVos Place, as managed by SMG (“SMG-DeVos Place”) compared to certain
operating revenue benchmarks, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined
operating revenues of SMG-Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined operating expenses
by an established benchmark, as follows:

2006 2005
Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses,
as defined—Arena $1,215,348 $ 1,664,647
Deficiency of operating revenue over operating
expenses, as defined—DeVos Place (611,644) (942,607)
Total excess of operating revenue over
operating expenses $ 603,704 $ 722,040
Incentive benchmark $ 534919 $ 259,115
Benchmark exceeded? : Yes Yes



The following is a schedule of the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30,
2006 and 2005, of which $180,467 and $86,953 are included in accrued expenses as of those dates,
respectively:

2006 2005
Base management fee, included in general and
administrative expense (A) $ 245,200 $ 239,220
Incentive fee:
Total operating revenues—Arena 4,814,703 5,006,139
Total operating revenues—DeVos Place 4,559,714 3,678,780
Total operating revenues 9,374,417 8,684,919
Revenue benchmark—Arena 4,576,971 4,465,338
Revenue benchmark—DeVos Place 3,680,413 3,246,912
Total revenue benchmark 8,257,384 7,712,250
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark 1,117,033 972,669
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in excess
of revenue benchmark:
20% of the first $1,000,000, collectively 200,000 194,534
25% of the excess of $1,000,000, collectively 29,259
Total incentive fee 229,259 194,534
Incentive fee allocated to Arena 48,792 107,580
Incentive fee allocated to DeVos Place (B) 180,467 86,953
Total incentive fee 229,259 194,533
Total management fees—DeVos Place (A + B) $ 425,667 $ 326,173

SMG and the Operator signed a new Management Agreement effective July 1, 2006 which expires
June 30, 2009. Under the new Agreement, the Operator pays SMG an annual base management fee of
$150,000 for each managed facility, adjusted annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price
Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year for a one-year period as presented in the Agreement). The
$150,000 base fee shall be contingent upon the Operator contracting the Van Andel Arena concessions
agreement with SMG—Food and Beverage. If that agreement were to be terminated, the base
management fee would increase to $175,000 for each managed facility.

Under the new Agreement, SMG also receives an incentive fee based on the combined operating
revenues of SMG-DeVos Place and SMG-Arena compared to certain operating revenue benchmarks,
defined as $8,600,000 in the first year of the agreement, and an additional $100,000 in each subsequent
year of the agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined operating revenues of SMG-DeVos
Place and SMG-Arena must exceed combined operating expenses by an established benchmark, which
is the lesser of $700,000 or the actual combined operating revenues less operating expenses for fiscal
year 2006 plus an additional $100,000 for each year of the initial term. The annual incentive fee shall be

-8-



the amount equal to the sum of 25% of the first $500,000 of any revenue increase and 30% of any
revenue increase in excess of $500,000. In each contract year, the incentive fee cannot exceed the base
management fee.

RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at the DeVos Place may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a
401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of
employment and 1,000 hours of service. SMG-DeVos Place makes matching contributions equal to 67%
of each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee’s eligible compensation.
Discretionary contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG-DeVos
Place made $32,239 and $29,475 in matching contributions and $10,276 and $9,212 in discretionary
contributions for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of DeVos Place, SMG personnel also manage the operations of Van Andel
Arena. The two facilities share certain expenses such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and
insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also
share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales.
Accounts payable includes $118,904 and $254,000 due to Van Andel Arena as of June 30, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

DeVos Place is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the
normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-DeVos Place’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no
provision for loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements.

* k k ok k %k



Van Andel Arena, as
Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements
as of and for the Years Ended
June 30, 2006 and 2005, and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Item IIL.b.iii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1
SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005:
Special-Purpose Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 2
Special-Purpose Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 3
Special-Purpose Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising
from Activities Managed by SMG 4
Special-Purpose Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG 5

Notes to Special-Purpose Financial Statements 6-9



D I i
e o I tte Deloitte & Touche LLP

700 Bridgewater Place

333 Bridge St., N.W.

Grand Rapids, M|l 49504-5359
USA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax: +1 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Van Andel Arena, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose financial statements of Van Andel Arena, as
managed by SMG (“SMG-Arena”), as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and for the years then ended, as listed
in the table of contents. These special-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of SMG-Arena. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special-purpose
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the special-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of SMG-Arena’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the special-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
special-purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to present
the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash
flows of Van Andel Arena arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a
complete presentation of Van Andel Arena’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of SMG-Arena at June 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-Arena and officials

of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be, and should not
be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

b/[o/'m ¢ Toucke coF

September 8, 2006

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT

DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
AS OF JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:
Operating
Ticket sales escrow
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $39,152 in 2006 and 2005
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance ticket sales

Advance deposits
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2006 2005
$ 601,438  $1,387,492
1,774,321 575,066
1,718,850 665,582

52,839 39,110
$4,147,448  $2,667,250
$ 367,195 § 220314

226,624 280,767
1,774,321 575,066

27,500 7,500

690,485 601,039
3,086,125 1,684,686
1,061,323 982,564
$4,147,448  $2,667,250




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING

EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events

Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Novelties
Other

Total net ancillary revenues
Total events and net ancillary revenues
OTHER REVENUES:

Premium seating
Advertising income

Other, including interest income of $94,185 and $51,428 in

in 2006 and 2005, respectively
Total other revenues
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES, BEFORE INCENTIVE
MANAGEMENT FEE

Incentive management fee

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES '

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2006 2005
$ 996,773 $1,288,900
1,223,344 1,201,124
187,823 210,057
55,202 37,599
1,466,369 1,448,780
2,463,142 2,737,680
1,213,098 1,208,781
608,855 553,891
529,608 505,787
2,351,561 2,268,459
4,814,703 5,006,139
1,379,999 1,309,749
161,725 163,915
186,048 158,371
804,722 704,536
1,066,861 1,004,921
3,599,355 3,341,492
1,215,348 1,664,647
48,792 107,580
$1,166,556 $1,557,067




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT
DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

2006 2005
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR—Beginning of year $ 982,564 $ 1,488,813
Excess of operating revenues over
operating expenses 1,166,556 1,557,067
Contributions received from operator 912,203 786,684
Amounts paid to operator (2,000,000) (2,850,000)
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR—End of year $ 1,061,323 $ 982,564

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM

ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating revenues over operating expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance deposits
Deferred income

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from Operator
Amounts paid to Operator

Net cash used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH

OPERATING CASH—Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH—End of year

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2006 2005
$ 1,166,556  $ 1,557,067
(1,053,268) 2,323,254
(13,729) 17,478
146,881 (1,388,047)
(54,143) 96,297
20,000 (12,500)
89,446 21,375
301,743 2,614,924
912,203 786,684
(2,000,000)  (2,850,000)
(1,087,797)  (2,063,316)
(786,054) 551,608
1,387,492 835,884
$ 601,438  $ 1,387,492




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005

1. OPERATIONS

Van Andel Arena (the “Arena”) provides space for family shows, concerts, sporting events, meetings,
and other performances. The Arena is operated by the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator”).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) with SMG to manage the
operations of the Arena. The activities of the Arena that are managed by SMG are herein referred to as
“SMG-Arena.”

The Operator from time to time provides funding to SMG-Arena to pay the obligations of the Arena
when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of the Arena.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting and include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the
Agreement, measured in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Accordingly, the special-purpose financial statements do not include property and
equipment, noncontractual repair expenditures, and related fund equity associated with the Arena, or
certain other activities of the Operator related to the Arena that are not part of the activities managed by
SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for employees hired by SMG to manage the Arena under the
Agreement. These employees are not employees of the Operator. The accompanying special-purpose
financial statements are intended solely for the information and use of the management and officials of
the Operator and SMG and are not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Use of Estimates—Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of operating revenues and
operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its estimates to be reasonable;
however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advance Ticket Sales—The Arena incurs a liability for cash received from ticket sales in advance of an
event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Operating revenues are not
recognized until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income—Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
luxury boxes and advertising contracts which are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over the
lives of the related contract. Also included are ticket rebates received from the ticket agent prior to an
event, which are not recognized as revenue until the event occurs.



Event Revenues—SMG-Arena records event revenue upon the completion of the event. Accordingly,
amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as liabilities until that
time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to expense upon
completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues—All concession and merchandise revenues are recognized when earned.
Concession revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor
for each event.

Other Operating Revenues—Other operating revenues include revenues associated with luxury seating,
advertising, ticket rebates, interest income, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs—From time to time, SMG-Arena incurs costs funded by the Operator’s capital
projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator to the
Arena. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed. These costs are
excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose statement of operating revenues
and operating expenses and are included in the special-purpose statement of changes in amounts due
operator as part of amounts paid to operator.

Reclassifications—Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2005 financial statements to conform
to the 2006 presentation.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

Under the Agreement between SMG and the Operator, the Operator pays SMG an annual base
management fee. The annual base management fee is adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year).

Under the Agreement, SMG also receives an incentive fee based on the combined results of operations
of the Arena and DeVos Place, as managed by SMG (“SMG-Arena”) compared to certain operating
revenue benchmarks, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined operating
revenues of SMG-Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined operating expenses by an
established benchmark, as follows:

2006 2005
Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses,
as defined—Arena $1,215,348 $ 1,664,647
Deficiency of operating revenue over operating expenses,
as defined—DeVos Place (611,644) (942,607)
Total excess of operating revenue over
operating expenses § 603,704 $ 722,040
Incentive benchmark $ 534919 $ 259,115
Benchmark exceeded? Yes Yes



The following is a schedule of the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30,
2006 and 2005, of which $48,792 and $107,580 are included in accrued expenses as of those dates,
respectively, is as follows:

2006 2005
Base management fee, included in general and
administrative expense (A) $ 245,200 $ 239,220
Incentive fee calculation:
Total operating revenues—Arena 4,814,703 5,006,139
Total operating revenues—DeVos Place 4,559,714 3,678,780
Total operating revenues 9,374,417 8,684,919
Revenue benchmark—Arena 4,576,971 4,465,338
Revenue benchmark—DeVos Place 3,680,413 3,246,912
Total revenue benchmark 8,257,384 7,712,250
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark 1,117,033 972,669
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in excess
of revenue benchmark:
20% of the first $1,000,000, collectively 200,000 194,534
25% of the excess of $1,000,000, collectively 29,259
Total incentive fee 229,259 194,534
Incentive fee allocated to Arena (B) 48,792 107,580
Incentive fee allocated to DeVos Place 180,467 86,953
Total incentive fee 229,259 194,533
Total management fees—Arena (A + B) $ 293,992 $ 346,800

SMG and the Operator signed a new Management Agreement effective July 1, 2006, which expires

June 30, 2009. Under the new agreement, the Operator pays SMG an annual base management fee of
$150,000 for each managed facility, adjusted annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price
Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year for a one-year period as presented in the Agreement). The
$150,000 base fee shall be contingent upon the Operator contracting the Arena concessions agreement
with SMG — Food & Beverage. If that agreement were to be terminated, the base management fee would
increase to $175,000 for each managed facility.

Under the new Agreement, SMG also receives an incentive fee based on the combined operating
revenues of SMG-DeVos Place and SMG-Arena compared to certain operating revenue benchmarks,
defined as $8,600,000 in the first year of the Agreement, and an additional $100,000 in each subsequent
year of the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined operating revenues of SMG-DeVos
Place and SMG-Arena must exceed combined operating expenses by an established benchmark, which
is the lesser of $700,000 or the actual combined operating revenues less operating expenses for fiscal
year 2006 plus an additional $100,000 for each year of the initial term. The annual incentive fee shall be

-8-



the amount equal to the sum of 25% of the first $500,000 of any revenue increase and 30% of any
revenue increase in excess of $500,000. In each contract year, the incentive fee cannot exceed the base
management fee.

RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at the Arena may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a 401(k)
defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of employment and
1,000 hours of service. SMG-Arena makes matching contributions equal to 67% of each participant’s
contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the participant’s eligible compensation. Discretionary
contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG-Arena made $25,759
and $26,502 in matching contributions and $9,526 and $7,352 in discretionary contributions for the
years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of the Arena, SMG personnel also manage the operations of DeVos Place.
The two facilities share certain expenses such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and insurance,
resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also share a box
office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales. Accounts
receivable include $118,904 and $254,000 due from the DeVos Place as of June 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

The Arena is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-Arena’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no provision for
loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements.

* %k %k k k ¥k



VAN ANDEL ARENA

FOOD & BEVERAGE REVENUE & COMMISSIONS
FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

MONTH
Concession Events

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

YEAR TO DATE
Concession Events

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

Item II1.b.iv.

MONTHLY EVENTS - PER CAP COMPARISON

Promise Keepers - 2 Days
Eric Clapton
Professional Bull Riders - 2 Days

September September September
Actual Budget Prior Year
6 7 10
162,381 169,000 148,194
(76,319) (79,430) (75,086)
86,062 89,570 73,108
41,020 26,500 20,397
(29,782) (21,333) (16,862)
11,238 5,167 3,535
97,300 94,737 76,643
(864)
96,436 94,737 76,643
YTD 2007 YTD 2007 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
8 10 16
215,775 252,500 300,075
(101,414) (118,675) (151,862)
114,361 133,825 148,213
65,736 44,500 71,278
(49,678) (35,823) (58,909)
16,058 8,677 12,369
130,419 142,502 160,582
(1,505)
128,914 142,502 160,582
Previous Visit Current Year Percentage Change
$2.35 $3.10 31.91%
$5.37 $6.61 23.09%
$5.32 $5.76 8.27%

Please note: This was the first visit for Eric Clapton, F/Y 2006 concert average was used as comparison.



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item VI
DATE EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Oct 18 Pistons vs Timber Wolves GC | CHRIS | Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
10:45A-12:15P | Timber Wolves shoot around
1:00 PM Pistons staff arrive
6:00 PM Doors
7P-10P Basketball game
10:00 PM Load-out
Pistons AC Banquet A SP-7P Sponsor hospitality
Pistons AC Banquet B SP-7P Sponsor hospitality
Pistons AC Banquet C/D | 4P-10:30P Media
Thur, Oct 19 | MI Assn of Non-Public Schools AH Arena 6:00 AM Load-in
7:30 AM Musician sound check
8A-8:30A Choir sound check
9:30 AM Doors
10A-12P Service
Fri, Oct 20 MI Assn of Non-Public Schools AH Arena 8:00 AM Doors
9A-10:30A Service
12:00 PM Load-out
Griffins vs Houston GC | TODD | Arena 7:00 PM Doors
8P-10:30P Hockey game
Sat, Oct 21 Griffins vs Houston GC | IIM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Sun, Oct 22 Available
Mon, Oct 23 | Available
Tue, Oct 24 Def Leppard/Journey GC | CHRIS | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Def Leppard/Journey AC Banquet A 5:30P-7:30P Fan Club
Wells Fargo AC Banquet B 5:30P-6:30P Banquet
Def Leppard/Journey AC Banquet C-D | 7:30A-9P Crew catering
Wed, Oct 25 | Griffins vs Rochester GC | ROD Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Thur, Oct 26 | Available
Fri, Oct 27 Griffins vs Toronto GC | ROD Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Sat, Oct 28 Griffins vs Philadelphia GC | TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Sun, Oct 29 Available
Mon, Oct 30 | Available
Tue, Oct 31 Available
Wed, Nov 1 MSU vs GVSU GC Arena 6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Basketball game
Thur, Nov 2 Red Hot Chili Peppers AH Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Fri, Nov 3 Griffins vs Manitoba GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Sat, Nov 4 Griffins vs Manitoba AH Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game skate/Autographs
Sun, Nov § Bob Seger AH Arena 8:00 AM Load-@ '
Mon, Nov 6 Bob Seger AH Arena 8:00 AM Load-in continues/Rehearsal




Tue, Nov 7 Bob Seger AH Arena 8:00 AM Rehearsal

Wed, Nov 8 Bob Seger AH Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30 PM Performance

Thur, Nov 9 Available

Fri, Nov 10 Griffins vs Milwaukee GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Sat, Nov 11 Griffins vs Albany GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game skate/Autographs

Sun, Nov 12 | Bob Seger AH Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30 PM Performance

Mon, Nov 13 | Available

Tue, Nov 14 Griffins vs Milwaukee AH Arena 11:00 AM Doors
12P-2:30P Hockey game

Wed, Nov 15 | Available

Thur, Nov 16 | Available

Fri, Nov 17 Griffins vs Peoria GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors

. 7P-9:30P Hockey game
Sat, Nov 18 Available
Sun, Nov 19 Available




S0IUOIN 3UON SuUoN suoN | WX ONILFAN INJ00:L-INV00:L vV NOW NSSV DIHLVd0d1SO IN
NOOY LNOAVIIE VD
LigiHx3 | wepo:z1 - wdgo:s D-d HA
£qqo1 ysiom NOISSAS TVIANTD g-v T1ve
A13)[eD puesn SUON SuoN W LIGIHX3 wd:§ - wep:g a-0 1ivd WNIYOd NOTVS S ATVIN 9002
JynoL
A|en puesn auoN SLNA T auoN [ Ou LIgIHXA WdO1 = V6 V Ha FHL ‘SNSAL OL WVHWVIEY WOH ¥ AON '1VS
d0¢:01-dOE9
Wd11-INd0E:9 MOFHO LVOD € Movd A1Vl d0¥:01-d01:01 TIVH TV1IOTA
Ag9011 dO€:01-dL | d0£:01-d0g:9 XIL 9 FONVINIOIIAd WJO01-Nd8 Ad
ast OlAVYL T IWNF T SYFHSN 9 | v 1vaddn NdOS:L-INdL TIVH TVLIOT I TVOISSVID -OSYD
SINOOY LNOAVTYd avo
HONNT a0
f1 | NOISSES TVIANID VD FLNLILSNI HLTVAH Or1dand IN
SINOOY LNOMVTYd TIVH TV1IOMA
SINOOY LNONVTYd WNOOYMIVOd
SINOOY LNOAVTId H-VD
SINOOY LNOMVIYE EQ Ao
SINOOY LNOMVTYd H-VO
3uoN SuoN SUoN suoN | Y STVAN Nd8 — INV8 g Ha SIINGAVIV IOVLIAH TYNOILYN
dn 13s O HI
3o0Q 1N T 3uoN auoN suoN | [ dn 13s wdgQ:g — Wweep:8 d-v 11vd WNAOH NOTVS S.ATVIA 9007
JnolL
A1j[en puein JuoN SLNG T suoN | oM LIgIHXd WdO1 - INV6 Vv Ha FHL ‘SNSAr OL WVHVIEY WOUd € AON Tdd
ONILIIN wdpo:9-wdpp:z1
HONNT wdgo:z1
ONILAIN wepQ: 1 1
NOLLVYLSIOT wege:6
301UO suoN auoN ouoN | W dnigs WEe((:6-Wep0:§ d-v NOW ALIID0S YTONVI NVORITNY
do€:01-dz do1-d9 TVSIVAHTY NIdO d01-d0g:L
asi 0 0 SYgHSNZ | AV IVSIVIHTA d9-dog:€ Ad 11 TYDISSVID -OS¥D
SO0 LNOMVTId Wooda@dvod
SINOOY LNOAVIId HVD
SINOOY LNOMVIYE 4V 04
SINOOY LNOMVTIEL H-VO
SuoN SUON auoN suoN | Ou STVAW | Wd00:8 — NV(00:8 g Ha SIINAAVIV IOVINEH TYNOILVN
dn 13s JHa
3ood "IN T auoN auoN suoN | W dn 13s wdpQ:§ — wep):g a-v 1ivd NNEOd NOTVS S.ATVIA 9007
danoL
Ai][eD pueid SUON SLNG T auoN | DY LidIHX3 Nd6 — V6 v HY FHL ‘SNSAr 0L WYHVIEY WOYA 7 AON "S¥NHL
AqQoT ysiam HLTVIH
AB|{eD puesn SuoN SuoN suoN | Od ONILITN Wd00:9 — INV:8 g-v 11vd NNYLOFdS / ONILIIVIN NVOTI
TVSIVIHTA d01-dog:L
d0£:01-dZ TVSYVIHTA d9-dog:€
ast 0 0 o v NI JAOW dzi-v8 Ad 1 TVISSVID -0S4D
VIVD ALRIVHD
An|jen puein JUON suoN auoN | O WANNIA | Wd6S:11-INd00:Z1 a-DT11ve WALNID ALINNWIWOD ¥3LXVd
¥nolL
Kiaj[en puein auoN SLNF T suoN | oY LIgIHXd Nd6 — INV6 Vv H3 FHL ‘SNS3I OL WVHVIEVY NOYA 1 AON "ddm
ALIYNO3S 32170d S.IW3 44v.1S 3SNOH | 93 NOILONNS 3NIL WOoOoY IN3AZ 3iva

9002 "39N3AON




dn13s H-VO ONILIIANW
3uoN 3uoN JuoN suoN | (I dn14s | wdgp:0l - wego:g a->711vd STTVS AVAMLOOL TINNIAN
J0IUOIN auoN auoN suoN | O¥ ONILFAN | Nd00:S — INV00:8 Vv NOW JLNLILSNI NOLLNIATId SISDID 6 AON "SYNHL
SuoN suoN SuoN auoN | W ONILIIN JNd00:S-INV00:8 v oY MIHAVIA NTY30d
Aa]jeD puel) SUON SuoN suoN | WA ONILFINW | WJOO:L-WV00'8 2T1vd MOHS AVOy ADNIOV FALLOTTAS
DNILIIN 4V Od
ONILITN H-VO INTFNIAOYII
£qqoT us;am DNILITN VD 7TOOHDS % NOLLV.LIATIDOV
A1|[eD pues auoN SUON suoN | O¥ ONILIIN | WJ00:8 — INV00:8 g-v 11vd NO NOISSINIWOD VION NVOIHDIN
30JUO SuUON SUON auoN | Dd ONILIFW | Wd00:S — INV00'8 VvV NOW FLNLILSNI NOLLNIATI SISRID
JdNolL
SUON SUON 3uUoN suoN | O¥ NMOQ ¥vaL Nd00:9 — INV8 V HY JHIL ‘SNSAf OL WVHVIEY WOYd 8 AON "Aam
Ia HONN'T Wd00:Z-INV00:8 d-271vd | NOFHONNT IO 40 1D JINONODT
SuoN SuUoN SuUoN suoN | W dn 13s Nd6S:11-INd00 JT11vd MOHS VO ADNIDV FALLOTTAS
DONILIIN 4V 04
ONILIAN HVO LNFWIAOYIII
£qqQoT usiom ONILIFAN 4VD 7TOOHDS % NOILV.LIATIDIV
A|[eD puei) 3UON SUON suoN | DY ONILFAN | JNd00:8 — INV00:8 g-v 11ve NO NOISSTNIWOD VON NVOIHOIN
30JUO SuoN SuoN suoN | O ONILFIW | J00:S — INV00:8 V NOW TLNLILSNI NOILNIATYd SISNID
anoL
SuoN 3UON SUON suoN | OY NMOQ ¥vial Nd00:9 — VS V HA FHL ‘SNSAr OL WVHVIEY WOYd L AON 'S3Nl
LHEI SUON SuoN suoN | [ ONILIIN Nd00:S-INV00:8 v Od JIA NTIaT
1I9IHXd O HA
¥ood TN T WOOY LNOMVTYE VO
ysppm NOISSIS TVIaANTD g-v T1vd
An|[eD puein 3uoN auoN suoN | [ LI9IHX3 wdpp:9 — weo:L a-d711vd NNAO4 NOTVS S. ATVIN 9007
4nolL
SuoN suoN SuoN auoN | O NMOQ IVIL Nd00:9 — VS v HY FHL ‘SNSAL OL WVHVIEY WOdd 9 AON 'NOW
uspomM 3uoN 3uoN suoN | [ ONILIAN INdOE:S-INVOE S v Od dIA NI
d0g:01-d0g:9
MOFHO LVOD T 1N0 IAON vZi-d6
d0€:6-d9 d0€:6-d0€:S XIL 8 FONVINIOIIAd d6-dL
OIdAVYL T LN T S¥aHsSN zl | v NI IAON di-v6 Ad (aNvd FHL) ODVIIHD
1I9IHX3 a-d>1Ivd
usiam NOISSIS TVHANTD g-v 11vd
Audj|en) pueiD L1dIiHXxd O-d HA
12y nquyx3 JUON SuoN uoN | [N | WOOY LNOMVEIEG | wepo:Zl —weo:, VD WNNIO0A NOTVS S ATVIN 900Z
dNnoL
SUON suoN suoN suoN | O¥ NMOQ dvIL Nd00:9 — INVS vV HI FHL ‘SNSAr OL WYHVIEY WOYd S AON 'NNS
SUON SuoN 3uoN SuoN | N dn 13s Wd00:9-INd00:€ v Od dA NDIATY
d0€:01-40€:9 1NO IAONW WVZ1-INdO1 Ad
Wd11-INdOE:9 MOFHO LVOD T ovE ATVL do¥:01-d01:01 TIVH TV.LIOTA
Agg011 dog:01-dL | dO£:01-dO€:9 XIL9 FONVWNIOIIdd WdO1-INd8 Ad
asi JI44ViL T 1IN T SYGHSN 9 | AV 1lviddn NJOE: L-INdL TIVH TVLIOTd NI TVDISSVID -OSUD
LIGIHX3 WJ00:L-INV00:L d-g NOW
ALINND3S 32110d S.LWN3 44v1s3snoH | 23 NOILONNS INIL WOOY INIAZ 31va

900¢ Y39N3IAON




TVSIVIHTA d9-d0g:€
d0£:9-dzas | 0 0 0| v NI IAON di-vs Ad Al'TVDISSVID -0S¥D
Kj(en pueid
ysiem SuoN SuoN auoN | oY 13anNONvE Wd00:01 — INdE g-v T1vd NVOIHIIW 1SIM WNIOANI
Ausj[eD puein
yspm SuoN SuoN auoN | DO HONN'T WdZ - WV8 g-v 11vd i3LNENIL VOMA #1 AON "SANL
ONILFIN Nd00:Z-INV00:L vV HI VX3 LI NVOIHIIN
J0JBAJ[D IDALGS
}20Q U0k
£qqo1 usiam SaMIa 40
A)[eD puelD auoN SuoN auoN | [ LigrHX3 | wdpo:01 - wepo:01 a-v1Ive | HOYVIN-NOLLONY J9HD TINLVNOIS
DNILIFIN -V Ood
Yood W ONILFAN ayvos
£qqo1 usiom ONILFIN VD ONILITW
Ad|[eD puelD SuoN suoN suoN | [ ONILFINW wdQQ:, - wepo:L H-VO SATVS YVAMLOO TITNIIN £1 AON 'NOW
d0€£:5-dOg: 1
d9-d0g:1 MOFHD LVOD T
Agd011 dog:s-dz d0g:5-dog: 1 XIL9
asi DIddVIL T LNF T SYIHSN Z1 | AV FONVINIOIITd ds-d¢ Ad It SdOd -OSYD
SINIA 40
3ooq "t aUoN auoN suoN | [ dn 13s wdp:§ - wepo:s a-v1Ivd | HOYVIW-NOILONYV 49HD TANLVYNOIS
ONILIIN 4V Od
ONILFIN @ivod
£qQo1 uspom ONILIFAN vDO ONILITN
A1d3[e) puein SuoN SuoN suoN | W ONILFAN wdgQ:, — wWep):L HVO STIVS AVAMLOOA TINNIIN 71 AON 'NNS
d0£:01-d0€ 9
Wd11-INdOE:9 MOFHD LVOD T
AgdOT11 dog:01-d.L | dO€:01-dOE:9 XIL9
ast Jl4dvVEL T 1WA T SYFHSN Zl | MV FONVINIOLIAd d01-d00:8 Ad 11 Sd0Od -OS¥D
Kqqo1 usiom NOILLJFOTA
Ai3|jeD pueln SuoN SuoN suoN [ DY dN-13S | wepo:zl —weeo:s VT1Ivd | NOILJIOTY ONIAQIm INNAILLINOH
ONILIIN 4V Od
ONILIINW aivod
£qqo ysiam ONILIINW vDO DNILIIN
Aw[{eD pueiD auoN auoN auoN | [N ONILITN wdpQ:, — Wepo:L H-VO STTVS YVAMLOOE TITNIIN 11 AON "LVS
Nd11-INdOE:9 d0€:01-d0g:9
Ag9€011 MOFHO LVOD T
VO0£:T1-d0E:9 d0€:01-dL | dOE£:01-d0E:9 X1L9 NOILLJZOTY VZi-d01 TIVH TVLIOTY
ast JIdAVIL Z 1WA T SYFHSN Z1 | v FONVINIOLDIAd d01-d00:8 Ad II SdOd -OSYD
ONILITN 3V 04
DONILIINW qivod
JYINNIA a->T11vd
£qqoT yspom ONILTANW VDO ONILFINW
Ass[[eD puel) auoN JUON suoN [ [ ONILITN wdQ:L — weo:L g-v 0 SATVS IVAMLOO TTRRIIN
20IUOJN SuoN SuoN suoN [ O¥ ONILFIW | Nd00:S ~ NV00:8 ¥ NOW FLNLLLSNI NOLLNIATI SISRID 01 AON Tdd
d0€:01-d0ES TVSYVIHTY Wd00:01-00:L
asi 0 0 0 v NI IAOW di-vs Ad 11 SdOd -OSYD
K3[[eD puelD JIANNIA dIHSYVIOHDS
£qqoT ystom 3UON 3uoN suoN | DY YANNIA | D00 1T — INd0O:T g-v 1T1vd TVANNY 3031100 NIATVD
dn 13s q@ivod
dn 19S 4V 0¥
dn 13s )
ALIYNO3S 32110d S.1N3 d44viS 3SNOH | 03 NOILONNS INIL WOOY IN3AZ 31va

900¢ ¥39W3AON




FJONVINIOITd Ad dINNYV -D14
ONIAIDSINVHL-@IASOTD D440 YT AON Tdd
JONVINIOLII3d Ad dINNV -O19
ONILLIIN Wd00:S-INV00:8 4-aos L1INONVE ONIAIOSINVHL
YINNIA AJ00:S-INV00:8 a-v1ivd SHTALSININ J9LLOYL TIN
ONIAIDOSMNVHL-AISOTD IDI440 | €T AON "S¥NHL
HONVINRIOLYdd Ad JINNV -O149
ONILIIN 4-ao 1ANONVE DNIAIDSHINVHL
dn l13s a-v 1ivd SARILSINIA ¥91LOYL TN ¢C AON 'ddm
HONVINRIOIIId Ad HINNV -D19
1T AON 'S3N1L
df L3S Ad dINNV-DLg
07 AON 'NOW
d0¢:-d0e°1
1vOD1 1NO IAON ds-dv
d0€:6-d0og’1 ds-dt dOg:-d0¢:1 XLy HONVINIOIId di-d¢
HO4d1‘as 1 JLIVIL T LNg T SYFHSN 9 AV NI JAON dZ-dZ1 Ad (MOHS S.NTUATIHD) NIAAVTV 61 AON 'NNS
S0JUON SUON SUON SUON 0| ONILITN Wd00:L-INV00:8 a-v NOW AAVIL OL A HOVEL ~ AGNLIHM
1NO FAON VZi-dol Ad
Wd11-Nd0t:9 d0¢:01-d0¢:9 AOVE ATVL dOov:01-d01-0t TIVH TVLIOTI
Agd0T11 A0GHD LVOD T HONVNIOLddd WdOI-Nd8 Ad
dil-vs d0g:01-dL | d0£:01-40¢:9 XIL9 Lv3add, WdO0L:L-INdL TIVH TVLIOTY
as i OlddvViL T IN3 T SYIHSN 9 AV SNOLLIANY dS-vé6 Ad Al'TVIISSVID-0SdD
81 AON 'LVS
ONILIIN
ONILFIN V00 11-NV00:8 Y O9O [ SYIDVNVIA SAIdVY ANVID dJ0 ALID
J0IUOIA SUON SUON SUON WA ONILLIIN wdpo:£-NV00:8 ad-v NOW HAVYL OL IN HOVHL — AGNLIHM
Wd11-INd0E:9 d0t£:01-d0¢:9 ADVEATVL d0v:01-d01-01 TIVH TVLIOTY
Agg0oT1 A0FHD LVOD T FONVIARIOYdd NdO1-Nd8 Ad
di1-v8 d0g:01-dL | d0E:01-dOE:9 XIL9 lvadd, WdO0gL:L-INdL TIVH TVLIOA
asi JlAIVIL T LNE T SYIHSN 9 AV SNOLLIaNy d5$-v6 Ad Al'TYOISSVIO-0OS¥D L1 AON i
S0IUON SUoN SUON SUON A ONLLFIN Nd00:L-INV00:8 ad-v NOW VYL OL 3N HOVHL — AGNLIHM
ONILITN Nd00:9-INd00:€ TVH TVLIOTA ONILIFIN QAVOd OSYD
AVSAVIHTA NOE:L Ad Al TVIISSVIO-0S4D
YANNIA aTivd
JLIFIHXdE 27T11vd FONTITANOD AVINISYAOIQYVD
A13[1en puel) SUON SUON SUON N LIFIHXE [ NdQO-11 — NV00:8 d-D £qqo] eyddas H1TV3IH WNJLO3dS
0OdXd FOYINNO0D
WA MOHS 3aViL g-v 11vd 4O dFFWVHD JINVISIHIN "M | 91 AON "SYNHL
TYSIVIHTA d01-d0¢-L
d0€:01-dTds t 0 0 0 AV TVSAVIHTA d9-d0g:¢ Ad AL TVIISSVIO-0OS4D
OdXd IDYIWNOD
A MOHS 3aViL g-v 11vd 40 YFGNVHO JINVISIH IN ‘M ST AON 'dam
ALIYNO3S 32110d S.LN3 44v.1S 3SNOH o3 NOILONNS JNLL NOOY 1N3IA3I 31vd

900¢ Y39N3AON




dn 13s Ad HVISSIN
NOISSAS TVIINID vV 11Ive
HONN1 a-ga 1ive
Ai[eD puein ALITV1IdSOH WOOIMIVOd
£qQoT yspm OOV LNOMVIIg VD
X00q "IN uoyN auoN suoN | LISIHX3 wdpQ:¢ — wepo:§ g Ha NVRING WIV4 1A | 0£ AON 'SUNHL
dn 13s aHA
ALITV1ISdOH WOO¥@IvVOod
SINO0Y LNOMVIYE 4V Od
SWOO0Y 1NOMVIIg H-VO
F20Q 1N SWOOY 1NOMVIdd 4VD
K)o puein NOISSAS TVIENTD v T1ve
£qqoT ysiem suoN 3uoN suoN | [ SIVAN wdpp:§ — wepp:g a-g 11vd NvIING WIv4d IN 67 AON ‘dam
ALITVLISIOH WOOI@IVOd
NOISSTS TVIANIO vV TIve
£qqo7 usppm SUON auoN suoN | N STVIN wdpQ:s — Wego:8 a-ga11vd NVIING Wav4d IN 87 AON 'SINL
auoN suoN suoN suoN [ I dn 13s wdpQ:s — Wepo:8 a-v 11ve NVIING WIvd IN LT AON 'NOW
FONVIAOIIAd Ad JINNV -O19
97 AON 'NNS
FONVINIOLId Ad JINNV -OL9
SZ AON 'LVS
ALIYND3S 30170d S.LN3 44v1iS ISNOH | O3 NOILONNS JNIL WOOY ANIAS 31va

900¢ Y39N3IAON




S0JUOIN SUON JUON SuoN | WX ONILIIN WNd00:L-INV00:L V NOW NSSV JIHLVJO3LSO IN
WOOY LNOAVIID IV
LgiHXd | weo:z1 - wdgo:§ O-d HA
£qqo7 ysiam NOISSAS TYIINTD g-v TIvd
Ax|[en puein SUON SUON (N JIGIHXH widgQ:§ — wep):g a-oT1Ivd WNI0d NOTVS S.ATYIA 9002
anoL
A{[eD puein SUON SIA3 T SUON | ¥ JLIGTHXH NdO1 - V6 V HE FHL ‘SNSAL OL WYHWVIEV WOYd ¥ AON "LVS
d0g:01-d0g:9
WNd11-Nd0E:9 YOFHO LVOO T OVE ATVL dov:01-d01:01 TTVH TV1LIOTY
Agg0T1 d0€:01-d. | d0£-01-d0t9 XL 9 JONVIWIOII3d WdO01-Wd8 Ad
asi JldIVIL T 1NF T SYFHSNS | AV lv3dadn NdOE:L-NdL TIVH TVLIDOTA 1 TVIISSV1O -OS4D
SIWOOY LNOAVIId avo
HONN1 4-ao
[L | NOISSHS TVIINID VO HLNLILSNI HLTVEH J179Nd IN
SIWOOY LNOJvIId TIVH TVLIOTY
SIWOOY LNOAVIIE WOO@Ivod
SO0 LNoAvIdd HVO
SIWOOY LNOJvVIId Ivod
SIWOOY LNodxvaId H-VO
AUON SUON JUON SUON | Jd STVIN Wd8 — V8 g HY SHINFAVOV FOVLIRIFH TYNOLLVN
dn 13s OHA
A0J TN T SUON 3uUoN SUON | (N dn 13s wdg:g — Wwepo:g a-v 1ivd WNIO0A NOTVS S.ATYIN 9007
ANOL
Asaf[ep puein SUON SLAH T SuoN | O LIGIHXT WdO1 - INV6 V HE FHI ‘SNSHf OL WYHVIEY WOJJ € AON Tdd
ONILIIN wd(Q:9-wdoo:z1
HONNT wdoo:z1
ONILIIN weQo:11
NOILVYLSIONT weoe:6
S0JUoN SUON SUON SUON | WA dNigs wreg):6-WwegQ:8 d-V NOW ALTID0S YFONVI NVIORIFWY
d0g:01-dT do1-d9 TVSYIVAHTA NIdO do1-dog:L
asi 0 0 SYIHSNT | AV TVSYVIHTA d9-dog:€ Ad I TYJISSVID -OSYD
SIWOOY LNOAVIId Woou@mivod
SIWOOY LNOoXvaId HVO
SWOOY LNoAvIIEd 4-v Od
SIWOOY LNOovRig HVO
SUON SUON SUON SuoN | Od STVAN [ JNd00:8 ~NV00:8 g Ha SHINIAVIV HOVIRITH TVYNOLLVN
dn 198 JHA
A20g "IN T SUON SUON SUON ¥4 dn i3s wdg:g — wegQ:g a-v 1ivd WO NOTVS S.ATVIN 800C
dnolL
Aia([en pueip SUON SLAE T SuoN | ¥ LigIHXd Nd6 —~ INV6 V H3 FHL ‘SNSAf OL WYHVIEY WO 7 AON 'S4NHL
£qqOT ysiam HLTVHH
A|[eD pueld SUON AUON SUON | JY¥ ONILITN Nd00:9 — INV:8 q-v 1Ivd WNNYLDFdS / ONILIRIVIA NVOTI
TVSYVIHTI d01-dog:L
d0£-01-dT TVSIVIHTY d9-do€:¢
ast 0 0 0 dv NI JAON dz1-v8 Ad I TVIISSV1D -OS¥D
VIVD ALRVHO
A1|[e pueiy SUON auoN dUON | ¥ YINNIA | NS 11-INd00:T1 a-2711vd YALNTD ALINOAWNOD JTLXVE
ANOoL
An[[eD puei SUON SLNG T SuoN | DY LIgIHXd Nd6 — INV6 V H3 FHL ‘SNSHI OL WYHVIEY NOYA I AON 'dIm
ALRINO3S S.LN3 44v1S 3SNOH | 23 NOILONN JNIL [419]0)-] 1N3IA3 4

3201710d

900¢ ¥39IN3AON

31va



an1ias HV O ONILFAN
auoN auoN SuoN auoN | (W dn13s | wdoo:01 - wepo:8 a-d TIve SETYS ¥VIMLOOd TITNHAW
3010 auoN auoN auoN | O ONILIHN | Nd00'S — NVO00'8 V NOW JLNILLSNI NOLLNIATYd SISRID | 6 AON ‘S¥NHL
JuoN auoN auoN suoN | Wi ONILTHW | NJO0:S-INV00:8 VO MIHAVIN NIYE0d
An|fep pueip auoN suoN suoN | W ONLLIIW |  WJOO:L-NV00:8 O T1Ive MOHS V0¥ AONIOV JALLOFTIS
ONILLTIW IV O¥
ONLLIIW HV O INTNIAOYJAT
£qqoT usIoM ONJLIIN VO "TOOHDS % NOLLV.LIQZII0V
Asyfeo puesp auoN auoN auoN | D¥ ONLLIE | NJ00:8 ~ NV00:8 8-V TIve NO NOISSHAINOD YON NVOIHOIN
3010 auoN auoN auoN | O ONILTIW | NJ00'S — V008 V NOW ZLNLLISNI NOLENSASNJ SISTHO
4NOL
auoN auoN SuoN swoN | DY NAOQ ¥VEL 009 ~ VS v Hd gHL ‘SNSEI OL WVHVIEY WO¥d 8 AON ‘QdM
1L HONNT | INJOO:T-AV00'8 Q-0 TIve | NOZHONNT ¥D 40 SN11O DINONOOE
auoN auoN auoN auoN | ¥ dn 13S |  Nd6S11-Wd00:Y 2 11ve MOHS GVO¥ AONEOV SALLOFTES
ONLLITN 3V Ood
ONLLITN HVO INSWIAOUJII
KqqoT usiom ONILITW VO "TOOHOS % NOLLV.LIGEIOOV
Ao puesp suoN suoN suoN | DY ONLLFIN | Wd00:8 ~ V008 8-V 11ve NO NOISSININOD VON NVOIHOIN
30O auoN suoN swN | DY ONILZIW | NJOOS — NV00'8 V NOW JLNLILSNI NOLLNIATNd SISTHO
NOL
auoN suoN suoN auoN | O NMOQJ ¥VEL 009 ~ V8 V HE GHL ‘SNSAr O1 WVHVIEY WO L AON 'S3NL
usiem auoN suoN SN | W ONILLIEW |  Nd00:S-NV00'8 VoY dIA NTIATI -
LIEIHXE RJEE
%00Q TN ¢ WOOY LNONVEYE VO
LD NOISSES TV¥ENEO €V TIve
Anjle pueso suoN ouoN suoN | (W LIGIHXT | wdoo:g - we0p:L a-0TIve MO NOTVS S.ATVIN 9002
¥NOL
auoN auoN auoN awoN | 0¥ NMOQ JViL 009 — V8 v Hi gHL 'snsdf OL WVHVIEY WO¥d 9 AON 'NOW
usiom auoN auoN woN | (W ONLLIIW | WdOE'S-NVOE'S v oY dIA NS
d0£:01-d0€9
MDgHD 1V0D T 1N0 FAOW VZi-d6
dOEi6-d9 |  dOEi6-d0g:S XIL8 SONVANOLYEd d6-dL
OIIVYL T LNE T S¥EHSNzl | 3V NI SAOW di-vé Ad (aNVE SHL) OOVOIHO
1IdiHXE a-oTIve
usem NOISSHS TVIENIO gV TIve
Ks|[eD pueso LIgIHXE O-dHe
11eY 31qryxg suoN SuoN SuON | W | WOOY LNOMVENE | WeQQ:Z] —WeQ:L VO WNAOA NOTVS S.ATVIN 9002
NoL
auoN suoN auoN suoN | DY NAOQd ¥VEL 009 ~ V8 V HE JHL “SNSAr OL WYHVIEY WO S AON 'NNS
auoN auoN suoN uoN | (W dn13s |  Wd00:9-Nd00:E v O¥ dIA NTIATY
d0E:01-d0E"9 1N0 SAOW WVZI-AdOT Ad
Wd11-NdOE:9 DFHD LV0D T MOVE NIVL d0v:01-dOL:01 TIVH TVLIOTY
Ag80T 1 dOg:01-dL | dOE:01-d0E:9 XIL 9 FONVINNOLNEd WAOT-Wd8 AQ
asi| OudvaLZ LN T S¥gHSN9 | MV 1vagdn NJOE LWL TIVH TVLIOT HI TVOISSVIO -OS¥D
LISHXE | NdOO:L-NV00:L a-g NOW
ALNNO3S 30170d S.LN3 34¥1S 3SNOH | 03 NOLLONNA 3N Wooy AN3A3 3Lva

900¢ ¥39N3IAON




TYSIVIHTA d9-d0g €
d0£:9-47dS 1 0 0 0| MV NI SAON dI-v8 Ad Al'TVDISSVIO -0S¥D
A|[eD pueln
usiom 3uoN 3uoN suoN | 0¥ 19nONvd N00:01 — INdE g-v 11Ivd NVOIHDIA LSIM WNHOANI
K3jieo pueln
ysiom auoN SuoN suoN | Od HONNT WdZ - V8 g-v 11vd iIZLNENIL VOMA ¥1 AON 'SANL
ONLLIIW Wd00:T-INV00:L Vv Ha VX LRI NVOIHOIN
JOJBAJ[3 IDIAIRS
320(] U0k
£qqo usiom SINWIA 40
Ko|[en puesn 3uoN SuoN suoN | W LIgiHXd | wdpo:01 —weo:01 a-v1Ivd | HOYVIA-NOLLONY J9HD NAINLYNOIS
DNILIAN AV Od
3ooq 1N ONILIIN ayvod
Kqqo1 uspom ONILFAN VO ONILIANW
Ai)[eH puein SuoN JUON sawN | [ ONILITN wd: £ — wepQ:L H-V O STTIVS AVAMIOO0d TINNIIN £1 AON 'NOW
dog:5-dog:1
d9-dog:1 MAOFHD LYOD T
Ad90T11 d0€:6-dZ dog:s-dog:1 XIL9
asi OAVIL T INF T SYFHSN T1 | AV FONVIIOIIAd ds-dg Ad 1 Sd0d -0S¥D
SANIA 40
3¥00d TN SUON SUON suoN | W dn 19S wdgQ:s — wep:s a-v1Ivd | HOYVIW-NOLLONY 49HD MANLVNOIS
ONILFAN 4V Od
ONLLITIN aivod
£qqo7 yspom ONLLIIN ivVD ONILITN
Lw|[eD pueln SuoN auoN suoN | [ ONILFTN wdgQ:, — wepQ:L H-V O SHTVS YVAM.LOOA TTRNIAN Z1 AON'NNS
d0€:01-d0E9
Wd11-WNd0E:9 MOFHD LVOD T
ALHOT1 dog:01-dL | dO€:01-d0g:9 XIL9
asi DlddviL T 1IN T SYIHSN 71 | v FONVINIOIIAd d01-d00:8 Ad 1 Sd0d -0SUD
Aqqo ysiam NOLLJIDTd
A3|[eD puriD auoN auoN 3uoN | Od dN-198 | wepo:z1 —wep):8 VTIVE | NOLLJZOTY ONIAAIM INNILLINOH
ONLLAIN 1V Ol
ONLLIIN aQivod
£qqoT1 ysiom ONILIAN VO ONILFIN
A|[eD puelD auoN SuoN SuoN | W ONLLIIN wdgQ:, — WepQ:L H-VO SHTVS YVIMLOO0d TITIIN 11 AON "1VS
Wd11-NdOE:9 d0g:01-d0E9
Agd0O11 MOFHD LVOD T
VO£:Z1-d0E:9 d0€:01-dL | dO€:01-d0g 9 XIL9 NOLLd9OTd vZ1-dol1 TIVH TVLIOTA
asi JI4IVIL T LN ¢ SYaHSN Tl | AV FONVINIODIAd d01-d00:8 Ad 11 Sd0d -0SYD
ONLLIIN 4V Od
ONLLAIN Ivod
YANNIA a-o1Ivd
£qqoT ysiam ONILIIN VO ONILFANW
Aid|[eH puein SuoN suoN auoN | [N ONLLFIN wdgQ: L — wepQ:L g-v O STIVS YVIAMLOOL TITNIIN
20IUOW] SUON SuoN suoN | DY ONILFI | WJ00:S ~ INV00:8 V NOW FLALLLSNI NOLLNIATId SISDID 01 AON Tid
d0g:01-d0g’S TVSIVIHTA Wd00:01-00:L
ast 0 0 o v NI FIAON dI-vs Ad 11 $dOd -OS¥D
A[{eD pueln FINNIA JIHSYVIOHOS
AqqoT yspm 3uoN auoN auwoN | O VANNIA | Wd00: 11 ~ Nd00:T g-v Tivd TYOANNY 0371100 NIATVD
dn 1L3s qivod
dn 149§ 4-v 04
dn 13s IvDO
ALRINO3S 32110d S.1N3 44v1S 3ISNOH | 03 NOLLONNS 3NIL Wooy IN3AI

3lva

900Z Y3dNIAON




FONVINIOIIAd Ad FINNY -OL1d
ONIAIDSINVHL-AISOTD ADII40 $T AON Tdd
FONVINIODIT Ad FINNY -D1€
ONILFAN Wd00:$-INV00:8 3-ao LINONVE DNIAIDSINVHL
JYANNIA Nd00:S-INV00:8 a-v 11vd STNLLSINIA ¥9110¥L TN
ONIAIOSINVHL-AASOTO ADIJIO | €7 AON "SUNHL
FONVINIOIIAd Ad FINNYV -O19
ONLLIIN 3ao IINONVE ONIAIOSINVHL
dn 14gs a-v 1ivd SHNLLSINIAN ¥TLLOYL TIN ¢ AON "adm
FONVINIOLNIAd Ad AINNY -OLd
1Z AON "$3NL
dn 13s Ad FINNV-O14
07 AON 'NOW
d0g:¥-dOg: 1
1voo1 1N0 FAONW ds-dv
dog:s-dog:1 ds-dz d0og:v-dog:1 XL ¢ FONVINIOLSIdd dy-de
HO41 ‘ds 1 OILIVEL T LN T SYAHSN 9 | MV NI JAOW dz-dz1 Ad (MOHS S.NTIATHD) NIAAVTV 61 AON 'NNS
S0IUOI SUON SuUoN suoN | WX ONILLITN Nd00:L-INV00:8 a-v NOW FAVIL OL I HOVAL — AINLIHM
1NO FAONW VZ1-do1 Ad
Wd1T1-WdOE:9 d0€:01-d0g:9 MoV AIVL d0¥:01-d01:01 TIVH TVLIOTY
Agg0OT1 MOFHO LVOD T FONVINUOIIAd WNdO1-Nd8 Ad
d11-vs dog:01-dL | dOE:01-dOE:9 XL 9 lviadd, WdOE: L-NdL TIVH TVLIOTY
asi OlddviL LN T SYFHSN 9 | v SNOLLIANY ds-v6 Ad Al'TVOISSVIO-OSdD
81 AON '1LVS
ONILFIN
ONILATN | NVO00:11-NV00:8 v 00D | SYIOVNVI SAIdVI ANVHEO J0 ALID
S0JUO auoN SuoN suoN | W ONILIFN wdoo:L-AV00:8 d-v NOW FAVIL OL I HOVAL — AINIIHM
Nd11-NdOE:9 d0£:01-d0E9 AOVE HIVL doy:01-d01:01 TIVH TV.LIOTY
A€g011 MOFHD LVOD T FONVINIOLIIAd WdOT-Nd8 Ad
d11-vs dog:01-dL | dOE:01-dOE:9 XIL9 lvdadd, INdOE:L-INdL TIVH TVLIOTY
ast JlddVIL T LNF T SYIHSN 9 | MV SNOLLIANY ds-v6 Ad Al TYDISSVID-0S¥D L1 AON Tdd
S0IUO SuoN SuoN suoN | W ONILATN Nd00:L-INV00:8 a-v NOW FAVYL OL IN HOVEL — AINLIHM
ONILIIN Nd00:9-Wd00:€ TVH TV.LIDTI DONILFIN QUVOd 0S¥
TVSAVIHD INdOE:L Ad Al TVIISSVTIO-0S¥D
JANNIA aTivea
LigiHxd oTIvd FJONTIFANOD AVINISVAOITIVD
An[1en puein SuoN auoN suoN | Od LIGIHXT | Wd00:11 — NV00:8 -2 £qqo] ewyo99g HLTVIH WNYLOEdS
OdXd IDIINNO0D
i MOHS Favil -V TIve A0 WAGNVHO DINVASIHIN ‘M | 91 AON "S¥NHL
TYSYVIHTA d01-dog:L
d0g:01-dZ dS 1 0 0 0| v TVSIVIHTA d9-d0g € Ad AL'TVIISSVID-0S¥O
OdXd IDYTNN0D
o MOHS IAVIL g-v TIve 40 YIGNVHD JINVJSIH IN ‘M SI AON 'dam
ALIYND3S 351104 S.LNZ 44vI1S 3SNOH | 03 NOILONNS INIL WOOHY LN3A3 3.iva J

900¢ Y39W3AON



dn 14s Ad HVISSTN
NOISSTS TVIaANTO vV TIvd
HONNT a-g 11ive
A|1eD puel) ALITV1IdSOH WNOOMQIvVOd
£qqo7 ys;pm WOOY 1LNOMNVIId VO
390d "IN uoN auoN auoN | [ LIdIHXA wdQ: — wep:8 d Ha AVING WIVAIN | 0€ AON SANHL
dn 14s g Ha
ALI'TVLISdOH NOOY@IvVOd
SINOOY LNOVIId 1-v oy
SINOO0Y LNONVIYd H-VO
¥o0q IN SINOOY LNOMVTYd VO
A|[en puely NOISSAS TVIANAD v 1Ive
£qqoT yspom SuoN auoN auoN | W STVAN wdgQ:s — wepo:g a-d 1Ive AVRING WIVd IN 62 AON "ddm
ALITV1ISdOH WOOIMIVOd
NOISSIS TVIANID v TIvd
£qqQo7 yspam JuoN JUON UON | (W STVAN wdpp:§ - wepo:g a-g-1Ivd nvNINg Wavd IN 87 AON 'SINL
SUON SUON SuoN suoN | [ dn 14s wd(:§ — WwepQ:8 a-v Tive nvINg WAV IN LT AON 'NOW
FONVINIOLIAd Ad FINNV -014
97 AON 'NNS
FONVINIOIIAd Ad FINNV -O19
ST AON "1VS
ALINNO3S 32170d S.LN3 44v.1S aSNOH | 23 NOILONNS INIL WOOY IN3IAS 3iva .

900¢ ¥39N3INON




